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REPORT INFORMATION 
ABOUT OUR REPORT
Our financial and business-related activities for the fiscal year 

from 1 July 2003 to 30 June 2004 form the basis of this report. 
This report also complies with statutory requirements.

We aim to communicate a clear and accurate account of the 
Port’s performance during this period and touch on how we see 
the Port progressing in the coming year.

This report is geared to a range of different audiences, with our 
primary target group being our stakeholders, customers, employees 
and Government and industry sectors.

It is also a key marketing tool widely circulated nationally and 
internationally to existing and potential customers and all other 
interested parties.

PUBLICATION AVAILABILITY
Hard copies and compact disc versions of this report are  

free on request. If you wish to receive either version please  
call + 61 7 4781 1500.

Based on last year’s success, we have again produced  
compact disc versions of this report in an effort to further minimise 
production costs and tap into the benefits of such technology. 

An on-line version of the report is also available on our website  
www.townsville-port.com.au.

To be listed on our database and automatically receive future 
publications, please complete the appropriate section of the  
feedback form located at the back of this report.

 
 
YOUR COMMENTS ARE IMPORTANT TO US
Our 2003/2004 annual report received an Award of Excellence 

at the Institute of Internal Auditors Queensland Public Sector 
Annual Report Awards 2003.

We continually strive to achieve excellence in our reporting 
standards by ensuring our annual report is accurate, clear and  
professional.
Your comments and suggestions on the content and style of our 
report are important to us, so we can improve future reporting.  
These can be made using the feedback form at the back of this 
report.

OUR VISION:

To be recognised as a dynamic world-class port that is  

reliable, dependable and customer-focussed, serving as  

a catalyst for regional economic development.

OUR MISSION:

To manage and develop the Port of Townsville in a man-

ner that facilitates our existing customers to maximise their  

business opportunities and encourage new customers to 

utilise the Port whilst earning a commercial rate of return  

for our shareholders.

WE WILL ACHIEVE THIS MISSION BY:

■ Ensuring that our facilities and services are efficient,  
reliable and adequately meet the needs of existing and future  
customers.

■ Being committed to strategic planning and port promotion to 
attract trade and industry to Townsville.

■ Acting commercially and competitively to promote the  
economic outlook for the Port, shareholders and the region.

■ Vigilantly promoting safety in all operations, and providing our 
customers with a secure port to ensure the integrity of current 
and future operations and trade links.

■ Adhering to our corporate values in all our internal and  
external dealings and operations.

OUR CORPORATE VALUES:

Customers A commitment to serving our customers, present 
and future, by conducting all of our dealings  
honestly, professionally and courteously. 

Community Recognising the community as having an  
integral interest in the Port and our responsibility 
as a corporate citizen by increasing our  
responsiveness to community expectations. 

Our People Promoting motivation and enthusiasm through 
open and honest communication, recognition of 
employee contributions and performance, and 
creating opportunities for employees and their 
career development. 

Environment A responsible and proactive approach to environ-
mental protection by ensuring that sustainable 
environmental management is a core component 
of our operations and port development. 

Corporate 
Governance

Operating in a professional, ethical and fiscally 
responsible manner, minimising risk exposure and 
adhering to the principles of openness and  
transparency at all times. 
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The Port of Townsville is Queensland’s 

third largest commercial port, providing 

all of North Queensland with a world 

class gateway for commerce and trade.   

Townsville Port continues to be one of 

the State’s fastest growing ports, and this 

financial year celebrated its seventeenth 

year of record trade throughput.

Townsville Port Authority (the 
Authority) was created in its current 
form as a statutory Government Owned 
Corporation on 1 July 1995 under the 
Government Owned Corporations Act 
1993.  The Authority manages the Port 
of Townsville, a breakwater harbour with 
a land and sea jurisdiction in excess of 
400 square kilometres located on the 
east coast of Australia.

 About Us
The Authority has close to 70 employees across a broad 

spectrum of fields including; engineering design and supervision, 
corporate governance, planning and environment, finance, port 
services, business development and maintenance.

The Authority is responsible for facilitating trade through the 
Port by effectively and efficiently managing and operating port 
facilities and services, and ensuring appropriate levels of safety, 
security and availability.

The Port itself contains a rich mix of Townsville Port 
Authority, Queensland Government and privately-owned and 
operated facilities and functions - making it both a vibrant and 
ever-growing commercial hub.

Customers play a vital role in the Port’s development, 
operations and continued success. Their needs are met 
by the provision of safe navigation within the harbour, by 
ensuing ongoing development opportunities with dredging and 
reclamation works, and the timely and reliable provision of port 
services.

Since the Port’s first wharf was constructed in 1863, the 
Port has remained central to the economic development of the 
region.  We dedicate our efforts to our strong economic and 
social relationship with the city and the wider region to ensure 
its continued growth and prosperity. 

For more information about our history, operations and 
current events, visit us on-line at www.townsville-port.com.au.
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RECORDS ARE MADE TO BE BROKEN
■ New Trade Record - we surpassed our record set last year, 

accomplishing our seventeenth consecutive year of record 
trade throughput in 2003/2004 with a total of 10,171,101 
tonnes of cargo passing over our wharves. This record 
represents a 3.6% increase in trade from 2002/2003.

■ Import Records - there were four import records set in 
2003/2004, including motor vehicles (15,630 tonnes, 
9,878 vehicles); oil (977,866 tonnes); nickel ore (3,870,413 
tonnes) and cement (305,998 tonnes).

■ Export Records - sugar exports (1,475,730 tonnes) and 
lead concentrates exports (372,587 tonnes) also set trade 
records for the Port of Townsville in 2003/2004.  

MAJOR INFRASTRUCTURE
Work on Queensland Sugar Limited’s 400,000 tonne 

capacity third sugar shed was completed, with its first receival 
of raw sugar from Giru in September 2003. It has stored 
370,000 tonnes in the first six months of operation. 

CAPITAL WORKS
■ Approximately $750,000 was allocated for essential works 

including safety upgrades, installation of new water mains 
for port customers and upgrading of the seven kilometre 
internal road network.

■ Investigations were carried out on upgrading the electrical 
network. 

■ A tender was awarded to the value of approximately $1.3 
million to upgrade security at the three port entrances and 
security at wharves. 

■ Installation of three new CCTV cameras at a total cost of 
$100,000. 

MAINTENANCE
■ Concrete repairs to wharves were 

undertaken at a cost of approximately 
$1.2 million. 

■ The demolition and subsequent clean 
up of the old timber wharf deck under 
Berth 3 was completed at a cost of 
$400,000. 

■ A major repair program on the blue 
ferry terminal was carried out to the 
value of $90,000. 

COMMERCIAL PORT OPERATIONS
■ Average berth occupancy decreased 

slightly from 29.67 per cent to 29.05 
per cent.

■ 714 cargo ships docked at the Port in 
2003/2004. The majority (262) were 
bulk carriers followed by general cargo 
vessels (191) and tankers (109). 

■ The Port welcomed 25 naval ships 
and four passenger ships during 
2003/2004. 

FINANCIAL OUTCOMES
Total Revenue $27.18 million

Operating Profit before Interest and Tax $3.78 million

Net Profit $1.23 million

Total Assets $133.40 million

Net Assets $108.29 million

Accounting Return on Assets 2.90%

Current Ratio 1.44

Interest Cover 3.33

Debt to Equity 0.16

Year Achievements In Brief
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 Report from the Chairman  and CEO

It’s been an excellent year for the Port of Townsville with 

many achievements and exciting developments. Reaching 

our 17th consecutive year of record trade is among the 

greatest in this long list. 

More than ten million tonnes of cargo passed over our 

wharves during the 2003/2004 year, surpassing last year’s 

trade record by around 200,000 tonnes.

Such milestones could not have been achieved without the 

dedication and hard work from a committed and progressive 

Port community. It is to our customers and employees that 

recognition is given for this notable achievement.

Increased tonnage from timber, sugar, meat and associated 

products and minerals such as lead and zinc concentrates 

and nickel ore, contributed greatly to the increase in cargo 

handled during the year. We expect this pattern to continue 

in the coming financial year.

M
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TRADE RECORDS
Since its inception more than 108 years ago, the Authority 

has assisted in establishing and developing a range of North 
Queensland industries. Our continued success in doing so is 
reflected in our trade statistics for this year.

Of the 12 cargo types commonly imported at the Port, four 
were imported at a higher rate than the previous year. This 
included motor vehicles, oil, nickel ore and cement. Sugar 
exports and lead concentrates exports also set trade records.

REVENUE 
Port charges on cargo increased by 3.4% from 1 July 2003, 

and charges on vessels increased by 6% from 1 March 2004.
On 1 October 2003, the marine pilots formerly employed 

by the Authority were devolved to Maritime Safety Queensland 
(MSQ). This resulted in a loss of revenue for the Authority. 
However we retained provision of pilot transfer services under 
a contract with MSQ.

FUTURE DIVERSIFICATION
Since our last report, investigations have continued into 

ways we can utilise and benefit financially from lands owned by 
the Authority. Strategic plans have been prepared for a number 
of areas and negotiations are underway with potential tenants. 

 Report from the Chairman  and CEO

Studies are ongoing regarding the  
possible construction of an Ocean 
Terminal, as well as development of Port 
land on the eastern and western sides 
of Ross Creek, a Commercial Marina on 
Ross River and further development of 
the western side of Ross River. 

The Port is working closely with 
Queensland Government representatives 
and the Townsville City Council on these 
matters. 
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PORT ACCESS 
The Port of Townsville has experienced 

considerable growth in recent years. This 
growth is expected to continue well 
into the future through freight increases, 
which will increase utilisation of existing 
port infrastructure. The increase in freight 
has led to considerable increases in 
heavy vehicle and rail traffic through 
residential areas adjacent to the Port. 
The Authority views the development of a 
suitable long-term solution for access by 
road, rail and bulk services as vital to the 
long-term viability of the Port.

The Authority continues to work 
co-operatively with the Department of 
Main Roads and other key stakeholders 
to progress the development and 
implementation of the Eastern Access 
Corridor at a state and federal level.

The corridor will link the Port to a 
road and rail node at Stuart, south of the 
City and will facilitate new industry 
development in the City. This is a critical 
infrastructure component that will also 
provide access to the State Development 
Area declared by the Queensland 
Government in the 2003/2004 financial 
year.

OCEAN TERMINAL
The Authority is co-operating with the 

Department of State Development and 
Innovation in the preparation of a tailored 
Business Case for a cruise and military 
vessel facility in Townsville. Considerable 
works have been undertaken over the 
past twelve months to refine the project 
and consider the viability of providing 
cruise and military vessel facilities at 
Townsville under the State’s Value for 
Money (VFM) Framework.

In the reporting period the Port 
hosted 25 naval vessels and four pas-
senger ships, again demonstrating that 
Townsville is the Port of choice for these 
types of vessels and their personnel. 

MAJOR MAINTENANCE
The Port is continuing a maintenance program designed to 

complete major maintenance works on critical infrastructure 
within a five year timeframe. Budgeted works included concrete 
repairs to Berth 1 and replacement of high voltage cabling 
and associated electrical installations to ensure the continued 
reliability of services to our customers.

TRADE MISSIONS
During the 2003/2004 year the Port was represented by 

the Business Development Officer on two trade missions. 
The New Exporters and Beef Alliance Mission to South 

East Asia identified new agribusiness opportunities for North 
Queensland’s agrifood industries.

The Townsville Mining Supplies and Services Cluster trade 
mission focussed on presenting this region’s capabilities to 
miners and mineral processors in New Caledonia.

SECURITY
Over the past 12 months the primary focus of Marine 

Services has been to develop a Port Security Plan which came 
into effect on 1 July 2004. Running in parallel with the security 
risk assessment process was a site security survey of the whole 
port area and all the facilities within the Port. Security measures 
in some areas have now been upgraded as a direct result of 
this process. 

A tender was awarded for approximately $1.3 million to 
upgrade security at the three Port entrances and security 
at wharfs. The project includes construction of new roads, 
installation of new gates, cameras, access control systems 
and wharf fencing. The Authority is committed to securing 
the safety of the Port of Townsville, in concert with national 
and international initiatives aimed at maximising the security of 
maritime infrastructure and operations.

ENVIRONMENT
Work on the environmental buffer zone project continued 

into its second year and is due for completion at the end of 
the next financial year. Native plants are being planted along 
residential areas bordering the Port comprising an area of more 
than eight hectares of land. 

In March 2004, 17 volunteers donated their time to clean up 
the Environmental Park and streets surrounding the Port and 
Fisherman’s wharf as part of ‘Clean Up Australia Day’.
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CONSULTATION AND CONTRIBUTIONS
We maintained our membership and active involvement 

with a number of regional development organisations 
including Townsville Enterprise Limited, Townsville Chamber of 
Commerce, and Mount Isa to Townsville Economic Zone.

We again participated in and supported the Mount Isa 
Mining Expo, the premier event for the Queensland mining 
industry. We continue to encourage interested groups to tour 
the Port and be briefed on our activities. 

This year we have again maintained a decade-long tradition 
of holding a Board meeting in Mount Isa in July. This provides 
our Directors and senior officers an opportunity to refresh and 
renew relationships in the region and keep informed about 
developments.

LOOKING AHEAD
The future continues to look bright for the Port of Townsville, 

something everybody at the Authority is working hard to ensure. 
We aim to ensure the Port continues to move forward by 

working closely with our port users and customers, looking 
to expand and tap into overseas markets, and continuing and 
nurturing relationships already made with industries and sister 
cities in neighbouring nations.

The Authority is always mindful of the contribution given 
by our bulk customers like Queensland Sugar Limited, QNI, 
Xstrata Copper, BHP Billiton, WMC Fertilizers, Korea Zinc and 
so forth - without them we would not be reporting record trade 
years. Their continued existence, together with the output of 
other mining operations coming on stream, is vital to our Port 
operations.

The Port of Townsville - the gateway to 
Townsville and North West Queensland 
- will continue to serve the community 
efficiently as it has done in past years. 

APPRECIATION
We would like to place on record 

our appreciation to the Directors for their 
strong commitment and support over 
the past year, and to all the Authority’s 
employees and management team whose 
efforts ensured the Port was available to 
all of our customers when required. We 
look forward to their continuing support in 
the coming year.
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Good corporate governance assists an organisation to achieve 

its outcomes and obligations through sound planning and 

risk management. It assists in decision making and improves 

accountability. Further, it provides a framework for fulfilling 

responsibilities the Authority has to its various stakeholders.

The Port of Townsville and its Board takes its responsibility to 

pursue efficient, effective and accountable Port management 

very seriously. We are committed to achieving and 

demonstrating the highest standard of corporate governance. 
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Name Position Initial 

Appointment

Last 

Re-Appointed

Appointment 

Expiry

Mr. Ron McLean Chairperson 1 July 1999 1 July 2003 30 June 2005

Ms. Beth Keating Deputy Chairperson 1 July 1999 1 July 2003 30 June 2006

Mr. Terrence Baxter Director 1 July 1999 1 July 2003 30 June 2005

Ms. Jennifer Gleeson Director 1 July 1999 1 July 2003 30 June 2005

Prof. Stephen Graw Director 1 July 2001 1 July 2001 30 June 2005

Cr. Tony Mooney Director 15 September 1990 1 July 2001 30 June 2005

Cr. Dale Parker Director 1 July 2001 1 July 2001 30 June 2005

Mr. John Pennisi Director 1 July 2001 1 July 2003 30 June 2006

LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK
The Authority is a statutory Government Owned Corporation 

established in its current form as a body corporate on 1 
July 1995 under the Government Owned Corporations Act 
1993. There are a number of statutes with which the Authority 
is required to comply, however the following sets the core 
legislative framework in which the Authority operates:-
■ Government Owned Corporations Act 1993 (Qld) and 

Regulations.
■ Transport Infrastructure Act 1994 (Qld) and Regulations.
■ Financial Administration and Audit Act 1977 (Qld) and 

Regulations.
The Authority is accountable to two shareholding Ministers, 

being the Honourable T Mackenroth MP, Deputy Premier, 
Treasurer and Minister for Sport, and the Honourable P Lucas 
MP, Minister for Transport and Main Roads.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Authority’s Board of Directors are appointed by the 

Governor in Council on the recommendation of the shareholding 
Ministers. Directors hold their office on the terms of appointment 
determined by the shareholding Ministers. Current Directors and 
tenure details are shown below.
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Cr. Dale Parker, Mr. John Pennisi, Ms. Beth Keating, 
Mr. Ron McLean, Prof. Stephen Graw, Ms. Jennifer 
Gleeson, Cr. Tony Mooney and Mr. Terrence Baxter INTRODUCING OUR DIRECTORS 

Mr. Ron McLean, Chairman
Ron retired as Executive Chairman of North Queensland 

Newspaper Ltd, a division of News Limited, after 37 years in 
the print media industry. He is currently a Director of Townsville 
Enterprise Limited. Age 68 years.

Ms. Beth Keating, Deputy Chair 
Beth has extensive knowledge of the Townsville business 

and community sector. She has a Bachelor of Arts (Hons), 
Masters of Arts (Hons) and is a Graduate of the Australian 
Institute of Company Directors. She also has wide public and 
private sector experience in human resources management 
including; employee relations, rehabilitation, workers compen-
sation, personnel management and health and safety – having 
worked with the Human Resources unit at Great Barrier Reef 
Marine Park Authority and as senior consultant with Keating 
Consultancies. 

Beth is a member of the Australian Institute of Company 
Directors and the Equal Opportunity Practitioner’s Association 
and is President of the Aitkenvale State School P&C 
Association. Age 47 years.

Mr. Terrence Baxter, Director
As a partner of the firm Ruddy, Tomlins and Baxter, Terry 

practices commercial law and litigation. He is a member of 
the North Queensland Law Association and Ayr Chamber of 
Commerce, and is also President of the Lower Burdekin Home 
for the Aged Society. Age 56 years.



Ms. Jennifer Gleeson, Director
Jennifer is an Associate of Lee Turnbull and Co, a law firm 

with a general practice. She is a Graduate Member of the 
Australian Institute of Company Directors. Age 34 years.

Prof. Stephen Graw, Director
Stephen is Professor of Law and Head of the School of Law 

at James Cook University. He has degrees in Commerce and 
Law from the University of Queensland and a doctorate in juridi-
cal studies from the University of Sydney.

He specialises in corporate, commercial and taxation law and 
has written or co-authored five text books on those topics. 

Stephen is currently a member of JCU’s Academic Board, 
a member of the UniSuper Consultative Committee and 
Deputy Chairperson of St Paul’s College Council. He is also a 
Brigadier in the Army Reserve. Age 51 years.

Cr. Tony Mooney, Director  
Tony has 22 years experience in local Government, and 

also serves in senior positions on local authority boards 
within Australia. He has been Mayor of the City of Townsville 
since 1989, is President of the Urban Local Government 
Association of Queensland, an Executive Member of the Local 
Government Association of Queensland and Director of the 
LGAQ Superannuation Board. Cr. Mooney is Chairman of the 
Townsville Breakwater Entertainment Centre Joint Venture. He 
is a life member of a number of organisations and patron of 
several sporting and community groups. Age 50 years.

Cr. Dale Parker, Director
Dale previously served on the Board from 1990 to 1996. 

He retired from the Australian waterfront in 1991 after a career 
of long distance truck driving, plant operating and 18 years of 
stevedoring in the east coast of Australia ports.

He is currently the Chairman of the Townsville City Council 
Corporate Governance Committee, the Disability Advisory 
Committee and the NQ Paralympic Games Committee, the 
Secretary of the Mt. Isa to Townsville Economic Development 
Zone (MITEZ) and a Management Committee member of the 
North Queensland Military Museum. 

Dale was elected as a Councillor to the Townsville City 
Council in August 1998 and re-elected in March 2000 and 
March 2004. Dale was awarded the Townsville Citizen of the 
Year in 1995 and a Centenary of Federation Medal for Service 
to the Community and the National Service Medal in 2003. 
Age 64 years.

Mr. John Pennisi, Director
Last year John retired and sold his paper and cardboard 

recycling company, Finjon Paper Recyclers. He served in 
the Queensland Police Service from 1970 to 1995, and is a 
qualified electrician and builder registered with the Queensland 
Building Services Authority. John also has a Diploma in 
Management. He has also served on various community organi-
sations and has spent two years on the Board of the Housing 
Industry Association. Age 58 years.
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ROLE OF BOARD
Section 92 of the GOC Act prescribes 

the role of the Board as including:-
■ Responsibility for the Authority’s 

commercial policy and management.
■ Ensuring that, as far as possible, 

the Authority achieves, and acts in 
accordance with its Statement of 
Corporate Intent (SCI) and carries 
out its objectives outlined in its SCI.

■ Accounting to the Authority’s 
shareholders for its performance as 
required by the Act and other laws 
applying to the Authority.

■ Ensuring that the Authority otherwise 
performs its functions in a proper, 
effective and efficient way.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD 
INCLUDE:-

■ Oversight of the Authority, including its 
control and accountability systems.

■ Making recommendations to 
Government for the appointment and 
removal of the Chief Executive Officer.

■ Input into and final approval of the 
Corporate Plan and Statement of 
Corporate Intent.

■ Reviewing and ratifying systems of risk 
management and internal compliance 
and control, codes of conduct, and 
legal compliance.

■ Monitoring senior management’s 
performance and implementation 
of strategy, ensuring appropriate 
resources are available.

■ Considering and monitoring major 
capital expenditure, acquisitions 
and divestments, and submitting 
for shareholding Ministers’ approval 
major investments (including major 
capital projects) in accordance with 
Government policy.

■ Approving and monitoring financial 
and other reporting.

ATTENDANCES 

Board Meetings Audit Committee Human Resources 
Committee

Eligible to 
Attend

Attended Eligible to 
Attend

Attended Eligible to 
Attend

Attended

Mr. Ron McLean 11 10 - - 4 4

Ms. Beth Keating 11 10 4 4 4 4

Mr. Terrence Baxter 11 10 4 4 - -

Ms. Jennifer Gleeson 11 9 4 2 - -

Prof. Stephen Graw 11 11 4 4 - -

Cr. Tony Mooney 11 8 - - - -

Cr. Dale Parker 11 10 - - 4 4

Mr. John Pennisi 11 8 - - 4 4

* Four flying minutes were also recorded in 2003/2004

BOARD COMMITTEES
AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chair – Mr. Terrence Baxter
Members – Prof. Stephen Graw,
Ms. Beth Keating and Ms. Jennifer Gleeson
Acting as an advisory service to the Board, the Audit 

Committee performs the following core functions:-
■ Ensures compliance with and assists in the discharge of 

responsibilities prescribed in the Financial Administration 
and Audit Act 1977, the Financial Management Standard 
1997 and other relevant legislation relating to accounting 
policy and disclosure.

■ Assesses and contributes to the audit planning processes 
relating to the risks and threats to the Authority, taking into 
account the financial and operational environment in which 
it operates and its performance management framework.

■ Assesses and enhances the Authority’s corporate 
governance, including its systems of internal control and 
the internal auditing function.

■ Evaluates the quality of, and facilitates the practical discharge 
of the internal audit function, particularly in respect of 
planning, monitoring and reporting.

■ Through the internal audit function, the committee oversees 
and appraises the Authority’s financial and operational 
reporting process.

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Chair – Mr. Ron McLean
Members – Ms. Beth Keating, 
Mr. John Pennisi and Cr. Dale Parker
The Human Resources Committee assists the Board in 

fulfilling its corporate governance responsibilities by:-
■ Reviewing recommendations on human resource matters 

from the Chief Executive Officer.
■ Ensuring compliance with statutory responsibilities and 

applicable policies relating to human resources, employment 
and industrial relations matters.

■ Establishing and reviewing proposed plans and policies 
relating to employment conditions and industrial relations 
matters, and monitoring their implementation.
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DIRECTOR & EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION
Remuneration for Directors is deter-

mined by the Government. Remuneration 
arrangements for the Chief Executive 
Officer and Senior Executives are deter-
mined by the Board, and advised to share-
holding Ministers before any variation 
is made to remuneration arrangements. 
The Authority refers to the Remuneration 
Guidelines for Directors and Senior 
Executives in Government Owned 
Corporations issued by Government. 
Remuneration for other Executives is 
determined by the Board on the recom-
mendation of the Chief Executive Officer, 
within Government approved guidelines.

The Authority does not have a policy 
of making performance payments. No 
Authority employees have received a 
performance payment during the past 
three years, nor are any such payments 
expected to be made in the future.

In accordance with advice from 
shareholding Ministers, any increase in 
senior executive remuneration is limited 
to a maximum of 3.5% unless a 
proposal for a higher increase is made 
and approved in accordance with the 
document mentioned above.

In accordance with the disclosure 
requirements set out in AASB 1046: 
Director and Executive Disclosures by 
Disclosing Entities, details of Director 
and Executive remuneration are disclosed 
in the Financial Report section of this 
Annual Report.

REVIEWING PERFORMANCE
Board
The Board has initiated a process of 

conducting an annual review of Director 
and Board performance. Directors each 
complete a Board Assessment Form 
evaluating their own performance and 
the Board’s collective performance. 
The form also considers a number of 
Board processes and practices, meeting 
protocols and the content of agendas 
and reports, with a view to continuous 
improvement.

Chief Executive Officer
The Chairperson and Deputy 

Chairperson carry out a formal perfor-
mance review of the Chief Executive 
Officer on an annual basis. The review 
measures performance against Key 
Performance Indicators, with the results 
reported to the Board. As a result of 
the review, Key Performance Indicators 
are established or ammended, position 
descriptions are reviewed and any training 
requirements are identified.

Executives
The Chief Executive Officer carries 

out performance reviews of all executives 
on an annual basis. The reviews measure 
performance against Key Performance 
Indicators, with the results reported to 
the Board. As a result of the review, Key 
Performance Indicators are established, 
position descriptions are reviewed and 
any training requirements are identified.

DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
All Directors are non-executive 

Directors. As a statutory GOC, the 
Board is to be comprised of people 
with an appropriate mix of skills, who 
are appointed by Government on the 
basis of their individual capacity to 
contribute to the Board, and contribute to 
the achievement of the Port’s objectives. 
Directors are required to disclose any 
interests to shareholding Ministers prior 
to appointment. Directors are also required 
to disclose any interests to the Board, 
Chairperson or Chief Executive Officer 
as appropriate using the Declaration of 
Interests Form.

CODE OF CONDUCT
A formal Code of Conduct was 

approved by the Board on 19 August 
2003. The Code demonstrates to 
Directors, executives and employees our 
expectations of their performance, duties 
and responsibilities in the interests of 
professionalism, compliance with legisla-
tive requirements and respect and appre-
ciation for others. The conduct and ethics 
expected of Directors is also covered 
within the Board Protocol and Charter.

PLANNING
Planning is a critical element of good 

corporate governance. The Authority is 
required to develop a five-year Corporate 
Plan and a 12-month Statement of 
Corporate Intent under the Government 
Owned Corporations Act 1993, which 
are submitted to shareholding Ministers 
annually for approval.

One of the Board’s key functions is to 
monitor the performance of the Authority 

OVERSEAS TRAVEL FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2003 TO 30 JUNE 2004
Name of Officer Title/Position Countries 

Visited
Date

Depart
Date

Return
Purpose
Of Visit

Costs/Funding
$AUS

Actual (A) or Estimate (E)

Agency $ Other $

Mr. Barry Holden Chief Executive Officer New Zealand 09/09/2003 13/09/2003 Attend Conference 
in Auckland

$5,245.98 (A)

Mr. Jason Mahlberg Manager – Construction New Zealand 09/09/2003 13/09/2003 Attend Conference 
in Auckland

$4,201.86 (A)

Mr. Ron McLean Chairman Japan 29/11/2003 03/12/2003 Meet with 
US Navy Officials

$7,342.83 (A)

Cr. Tony Mooney Director Japan 29/11/2003 03/12/2003 Meet with 
US Navy Officials

$5,957.60 (A)

Mr. Frank Gedling Business Development 
Officer

Brunei, Manila, 
HCMC

21/02/2004 06/03/2004 Trade 
Opportunities

$3,889.77 (A)

Mr. Frank Gedling Business Development 
Officer

New Caledonia 15/03/2004 19/03/2004 Trade 
Opportunities

$2,653.34 (A)
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against identified corporate objectives, 
strategic business plans and the legisla-
tive and governance framework in which 
the Authority operates. A summary of the 
Authority’s Statement of Corporate Intent 
is provided later in this Annual Report.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The GOC Act provides for the 

Board to recommend the payment of 
a dividend following consultation with 
shareholding Ministers. Under the GOC 
Act, the dividend must be paid within 
six months after the end of the financial 
year or any further period that the 
shareholding Ministers allow.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE
In March 2004 the Authority 

commissioned Marsh Risk Consulting 
to undertake a review of the Authority’s 
Risk Management Systems from a gov-
ernance perspective against Australian 
Standard 4360: Risk Management, ASX 
Governance Guidelines (Principle 7: 
Recognise and Manage Risk) and best 
practice.

The review indicated that the Authority 
is managing high profile risks well at 
Management and Director levels, and 
that the Board is well informed of risk 
management efforts being undertaken.

ISO9001:2000 QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
SYSTEM
This year the Authority maintained 

certification to ISO9001:2000 Quality 
Management System. Significant work 
was undertaken to upgrade to this new 
International Standard. The Authority 
obtained ISO9001:2000 certification on 
24 October 2003. 

This International Standard promotes 
the adoption of a process approach 
when developing, implementing and 
improving the effectiveness of a quality 
system, to enhance customer satisfac-
tion by meeting customer requirements. 
The Authority is committed to the con-
tinuous improvement of our Business 
Management System.

AUDITS
PriceWaterhouseCoopers (PWC) are contracted to carry 

out the Authority’s internal audit services until 30 June 2006. 
The external audit function is carried out by the Queensland 
Audit Office.

SUMMARY OF DIRECTIONS AND NOTIFICATIONS 
GIVEN UNDER THE GOC ACT
No directions or notifications were received from the 

Queensland Government during the 2003/2004 financial 
year. 

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION
The Freedom of Information Act 1992 (the Act) provides a 

general right of access to documents held by Ministers, State 
Government departments, local authorities and most semi-
Government agencies and statutory authorities. The Act places 
an obligation on the agency to provide information requested, 
unless the information requested is deemed exempt under 
specific provisions of the Act.

As a Government Owned Corporation, the Authority is 
required to provide certain documents requested under the 
Act. We also have a requirement pursuant to the Act to 
provide annual reports on FOI requests made during each 
financial year.

The Authority completed three FOI applications during the 
2002/2003 financial year. No requests were transferred to 
another agency or subject to internal or external review.

2003/2004 ANNUAL FREEDOM OF INFORMATION FIGURES
Applications Received: 3
Applications Completed: 3
Information Provided: 2 (89 documents in total)
Information Exempt: 1
Time Taken to Process: 
 0-10 Days 3
 11-21 Days 0
 21+ Days 0

LOOKING AHEAD: OUR OBJECTIVES
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
We will review the corporate governance framework in 

light of current best practice, including the ASX Corporate 
Governance Council’s principles of good corporate governance 
(where applicable and relevant to the Authority as a statutory 
GOC) and the recommendations contained in the Queensland 
Auditor-General Report No. 2 2002/03.



INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Authority has commenced preparatory work towards 

the adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards for 
the financial year commencing 1 July 2005 in compliance with 
the determination by the Financial Reporting council. Financial 
Statements for the year ending 30 June 2006 will be prepared 
using these standards and will also include previous year 
comparative information. An implementation project team has 
been formed to ensure a smooth transition to the adoption of 
the international standards.

CORRUPTION AND FRAUD CONTROL
We will develop and implement a Corruption and Fraud 

Control system incorporating recommendations from the 
Queensland Auditor-General Report No. 10 2002/03.

RISK MANAGEMENT
We will commence planning for the development 

and implementation of a comprehensive and robust Risk 
Management System to ensure that strategic and business 
risks are appropriately identified and managed, with a view to 
certification under AS4360:1999 - Risk Management. Risk 
management will be integrated into all levels and aspects of 
business operations, in particular all levels of planning.

TENANCY MANAGEMENT
During 2004/2005 the Authority will complete the first 

round of audits under the lease audit program under the 
newly-completed Tenancy Risk Management and Compliance 
program, with on-going random audits of lease sites to minimise 
risks and reduce any exposure to liability.

RECORDS MANAGEMENT
An electronic based Records Management System has 

been identified in the Authority’s Strategic Recordkeeping 
Implementation Plan as necessary to upgrade the current 
recordkeeping methods to comply with Information Standards 
40 and 41 issued under the Financial Administration and Audit 
Act 1977. 

The introduction of an electronic records management 
system will result in the following benefits for the Authority:-
■ Improved organisational efficiency through immediate 

access to large volumes of information.
■ Elimination of duplication that exists in the current manual 

system.
■ Compliance with legislation and standards.
■ Cost savings through reduction of photocopying, printing, 

storage and filing.
■ Protection of critical documents and the ability to retrieve 

critical information which is necessary for business continuity 
and legal protection should physical documents be lost/
destroyed.
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Mr. Barry Holden Chief Executive Officer
Barry was appointed Chief Executive 

Officer on 14 March 2002 after working 
as the Regional Manager of Adsteam 
Harbour in Western Australia for four 
years. 

Before moving to Western Australia, 
Barry fulfilled the role of Acting Manager 
with the Department of Premier and 
Cabinet in Townsville.

He was previously employed by 
the Authority in various managerial and 
administrative positions from 1974 to 
1997. 

He is a member of CPA Australia 
and the Chartered Institute of Logistics 
and Transport, and has professional 
qualifications in Commerce and specialist 
shipping/transport fields.

Ms. Ranee Crosby Manager Corporate Governance 
Ranee heads the corporate governance team, overseeing 

the Authority’s corporate governance framework, business 
management system, property holdings and tenancy 
arrangements, public relations, corporate communications, 
record keeping and information technology functions. Ranee 
is also responsible for the development and review of the 
Corporate Plan and Statement of Corporate Intent.

Ranee was appointed Manager Corporate Governance in 
October 2003. Ranee has over eight years experience with the 
Port of Townsville and holds a Bachelor of Laws degree. 

Ms. Caryn Anderson Manager Planning & Environment 
Caryn rejoined the Authority in October 2003 after almost 

three years working with the International Tanker Owners 
Pollution Federation (ITOPF) based in London, UK. During 
her time with ITOPF, Caryn gained a wealth of international 
maritime experience through the provision of technical advice 
in relation to major shipping accidents, the development 
and delivery of training programs and participation at the 
International Maritime Organisation.

Upon her return, Caryn was appointed to the position 
of Manager Planning & Environment and has embraced the 
challenges and opportunities of her expanded role within the 
organisation. Caryn is responsible for strategic port land use 

Mr. Larry Hore, Mr. Udhaya Arambawela, Ms. Ranee Crosby, 
Mr. Len McDougall, Mr. Barry Holden, Mr. David King, 
Ms. Caryn Anderson and Mr. David Stevens

Our Management Team

13802_TPA_AR_text_05.indd   16 12/10/04   4:33:56 PM



1717
2003
2004

PO
RT O

F TOW
NSVILLE

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T17171717

and development planning and approvals, trade and business 
development, major commercial projects and environmental 
management and protection.

Caryn has a Bachelor of Applied Science (Honours) 
degree specialising in Environmental Management and Marine 
Biology, a Masters in Local Government and Environmental Law 
specialising in international maritime pollution law and has 
recently commenced a Masters of Business Administration. 
Caryn’s formal qualifications are supported by over ten years’ 
practical experience in the port and shipping industry.

Mr. Len McDougall Manager Finance 
Len heads the finance team and is responsible for all financial,  

accounting and human resource functions of the Authority.
His extensive industry experience in both fields, coupled 

with his diligent approach to work, sees Len well-placed to 
oversee and manage this vitally important area. 

Since joining the Authority in 1996, Len held two other 
administrative and accounting positions before being promoted 
to his current role as manager.

He has a Bachelor of Business and is also a member of 
CPA Australia.

Mr. Larry Hore Manager Engineering 
After spending five years working on telephone exchanges 

and repeater stations in Papua New Guinea, Larry joined the 
Authority in 1996.

Initially working as an electrical engineer, Larry brought 
considerable experience gained through the overseas stint and 
previous time with the then Civil Aviation Authority. 

Over the following two years he also worked as a Senior 
Engineer and Maintenance Manager at the Authority before 
being appointed to his current position in 1998.

He has a Bachelor of Engineering, a Master of Business 
Administration and is a member of the Institute of Engineers 
Australia.

Mr. David King Manager Marine Services 
With more than 18 years experience in the port industry, 

David has an extensive knowledge of port operations and 
procedures.

In his present role, he oversees the port services team that 
is responsible for port control, dangerous goods management 
and security.

He holds qualifications as Master Class 5, Workplace Health 
and Safety Officer in Construction and Manufacturing and 
completed university courses in management and dangerous 
goods.

Mr. Udhaya Arambawela Manager Construction 
Udhaya joined the Authority in April 2001 as a Project 

Engineer bringing considerable consulting and construction 
experience and skills to the engineering business unit. He was 
promoted as the Manager Construction at the end of 2003.

He has previously worked with a number of leading consulting 
and construction engineering companies. Major projects he was 
involved in included Federation Square in Melbourne, Sun Metals 
Refinery in Townsville, upgrade of the MIM Copper Smelter and 
various other commercial and industrial projects overseas.

Udhaya’s main area of interest and 
expertise is marine-related project man-
agement and construction. He has a 
Bachelor of Civil Engineering (Hons), a 
Master of Structural Engineering, Grad-
uate Diploma of Business Administration 
and is a Charted Member of the Institute 
of Engineers Australia. 

Mr. David Stevens Manager Maintenance 
David joined the Authority in March 

2003, and has already been involved 
in several projects including the Berth 
3 demolition and spill plate and fender 
upgrades.

He is responsible for ensuring 
the Authority’s facilities, assets and 
infrastructure are maintained to a level 
that meets or exceeds the expectations of 
our customers and other stakeholders.

David has a Bachelor of Mechanical 
Engineering (Hons), a Graduate 
Certificate of Maintenance Management 
and is currently completing a Masters of 
Business Administration.

He is a member of the Institute of 
Engineers Australia and Maintenance 
Engineering Society of Australia.
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CORPORATE INTENT 2003/2004
Under the Government Owned Corporations Act 1993 the Authority is required to 

include a summary of the Statement of Corporate Intent for the relevant financial year in 
the Annual Report.  A full copy of the Statement of Corporate Intent is laid before the 
Legislative Assembly at the same time as the tabling of the Annual Report.

The information below represents a summary of the information contained in the 
Statement of Corporate Intent 2003/2004.

Objectives for 2003/2004 Achieved Comments

Annual Accounting rate of Return on Total 
Assets 0.95%

Yes * Actual result  2.9%

EBIT $1.20m Yes * Actual achieved $3.7m

Quick Ratio > 0.70 (average over 12 months) Yes * Actual achieved 1.44

Interest Cover Ratio > 0.90 Yes *Actual was 3.3 with no new borrowings in 
2003-2004

Payback Period < 7.0 Yes

Debt / Equity Ratio < 1.0 Yes No new borrowings in 2003-2004

Weighted Average Cost of Capital 
(nominal After Tax)1 9.0

- No change

To achieve tonne throughput of 10.2 million 
tonnes

No Marginally lower at 10.17 million tonnes, which 
still represents a 3.6% increase from 2002-2003

Increase container throughput to greater than 
> 20,000 TEU’s

No Increased from 17,770 in 2002-2003 to 19,033 
in 2003-2004 

Gross Loading Rate (based on hours at berth) 
> 400 tonnes per hour

Yes Actual achieved 443. Up from 420 in 2002-2003
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STRATEGIES TO IMPROVE CORE PROFITABILITY
■ Containment of administrative costs and discretionary 

expenses, by focussing on core activities.
■ Critical review of asset valuations, particularly with respect 

to infrastructure asset values and useful life assumptions.
■ Ensure new asset acquisitions will meet hurdle rates for 

profitability.
■ Progressive increases in commercial shipping prices 

(tonnage rates and harbour dues) to restore profitability to 
commercial shipping activities.

■ Increase leasing of available Port lands to broaden the 
Authority’s revenue base.

■ Examination of alternative dredging strategies.

CORE ACTIVITIES
■ Operational management of the 

Port to ensure efficient and effective 
operations.

■ Strategic planning for the optimum 
development and management of the 
Port.

■ Promotion and marketing of the Port 
to new and potential Port customers.

■ Trade facilitation in association with 
other parties (e.g. Department of State 
Development and Innovation and 
Department of Primary Industries).

■ Management of Port lands.
■ Protection of the environment.
■ Compliance with marine pollution and 

safety laws.

 Our Performance  & Objectives
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IN REVIEW: 
OUR PERFORMANCE

PROPERTIES & DEVELOPMENTS
■ The Authority finalised tenancy 

arrangements with a number of 
Port customers and other bodies, 
including Sugar Terminals Limited, 
MJ Nielson Pty. Ltd., Australian 
Marshalling Services, Townsville 
Warehousing & Container Services, 
North Queensland Marine Towage 
and McMahon Marine Constructions.

■ During 2003/2004, ten Integrated 
Development Assessment System 
(IDAS) applications were received. Of 
these, five applicants did not proceed, 
four applications were assessed and 
approved, and one application is 
currently being assessed.

NEW BUSINESS
This year the Port welcomed two new export customers 

from the mining industry: 
■ Kagara Zinc Ltd. has a central processing facility at 

Mt. Garnet, 105 kilometres west of Cairns in North 
Queensland, which produces predominantly zinc 
concentrates for processing at Korea Zinc’s new zinc 
refinery in Townsville. In addition, significant copper and 
lead concentrates will be produced as a by product 
stream for export. The project has reserves for a nine year 
mine life, based on the throughput rate contemplated. 
The treatment facility will be capable of processing up to 
600,000 tonnes per annum, producing 80,000 tonnes of 
zinc concentrate, 20,000 tonnes of lead concentrate and 
8,000 tonnes of copper concentrate per year. The lead 
and copper concentrates will be exported through the 
Port of Townsville.

■ The Mt. Gordon copper mine (formerly known as Gun-
powder) was purchased by Birla Mineral Resources Pty. 
Ltd. – a subsidiary of Hidalco Industries Ltd. that is in turn 
a part of the Aditya Birla Group, one of India’s largest busi-
ness houses. Birla have amended the operations to produce 

Trade & Industry
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solely copper concentrate as a feedstock for their refinery 
in India. Export is expected to commence in August 2004 
with a projected 150,000 tonnes in the first year rising to 
200,000 tonnes in subsequent years. There are adequate 
resources at Mount Gordon to continue operations for the 
next five to eight years and possibly longer if exploration 
identifies further suitable deposits.

TOWNSVILLE STATE DEVELOPMENT AREA
The State Government in early November 2003 announced 

that it had declared the Townsville State Development Area 
(TSDA) covering the Stuart Industrial Area and the Townsville 
Port Eastern Access Corridor. The declaration of the State 
Development Area will allow the Government to plan for 
development, recognising the needs of industry, the community 
and the environment.

The Townsville State Development Area, with its strategic 
location in relation to the Port and its established infrastructure, 
is expected to attract industry, especially industry that would 
benefit from the synergies of co-location with similar and/
or complementary industries. Stuart is already the location 
of Xstrata Copper’s refinery, Sun Metals’ zinc refinery and 
Australia Meat Holdings’ abattoir. 

A development scheme for the 
management of the TSDA is being 
prepared and a draft scheme will be 
available for public consultation before 
being finalised.

PORT ACCESS CORRIDOR
The Townsville Port Access 

Impact Assessment Study (IAS) was 
initially commissioned in October 
1997 with the object of considering 
the available options to provide environ-
mentally sustainable land side transport 
access to the Port, to meet its needs 
to the year 2025 and beyond, while 
minimising the impact on Townsville’s 
central and residential area.

On 19 November 2001, following 
the completion of the Townsville Port 
Access Impact Assessment Study, the 
Government endorsed securing the 
Eastern Access Corridor to Townsville 
Port to protect it for future development. 



Detailed planning and investigations 
have commenced for a dedicated 
transport corridor linking the Port of 
Townsville with the industrial land at 
Stuart, Townsville, within the State 
Development Area. Provision for materials 
handling and other services within this 
Port Access Corridor is planned.

The Department of Transport and 
Main Roads has committed funding for 
the construction of the Stuart Bypass 
linking the Flinders and Bruce Highways 
as Stage 1 of the Port Access Corridor, 
subject to a 50% contribution from the 
Commonwealth Government.

THIRD SUGAR SHED PROJECT
The new lease of approximately 

9.2 hectares for the new storage shed 
commenced in December 2002. In 
September 2003, the newly constructed 
400,000 tonne capacity bulk sugar 
storage shed accepted its first raw sugar 
supplies from Giru’s Invicta mill bound 
for Japan. 

The construction of the $50 million 
shed took 17 months to complete, and 
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Detailed planning and investigations 
have commenced for a dedicated 

Detailed planning and investigations 
have commenced for a dedicated 

involved around 23,000 cubic metres of reinforced concrete, 
and 2,000 tonnes of structural steel. At its peak, this construc-
tion project employed 200 personnel.

 Measuring 376m by 100m and 30m high, the newly 
completed shed combined with the two existing sugar storage 
sheds will increase the flexibility of Queensland Sugar Limited 
in the global market place, providing greater economic benefits 
for the Burdekin production. The shed has 1,800 tonne per 
hour in-loading design, and 2,800 tonne per hour reclaim to the 
ship-loader. The shed also features a multi-million dollar, state of 
the art fire safety system – the first of its kind in Queensland. 

TRADE MISSIONS
During the 2003/2004 year the Port was represented by 

the Business Development Officer on two trade missions. 
Each mission focussed on a different trade for the Port and 
included:-
■ The New Exporters and Beef Alliance Mission to South East 

Asia targeted Brunei, Philippines and Vietnam to identify 
new agribusiness opportunities for North Queensland’s 
agrifood industries.

■ The Townsville Mining Supplies and Services Cluster trade 
mission to New Caledonia focussed on presenting North 
Queensland’s capabilities to miners and mineral processors 
in New Caledonia.



LOOKING AHEAD: OBJECTIVES
Our attention during 2004/2005 will be focussed on:-
■ Identifying and pursuing trade growth opportunities and 

diversification through improved market intelligence and Port 
promotion efforts, and by maintaining close liaisons with our 
customers, relevant Government and industry groups.

■ Proactive support of the construction of the Eastern 
Access Corridor, and development and implementation of 
a transport network strategy during 2005 that adequately 
caters for future transport needs.

■ Managing the issues associated with security requirements 
to ensure minimal disruption to trade and operations.

■ Ensuring that targeted business cases addressing 
Government requirements are undertaken for projects 
outside traditional core activities and shareholding Ministers’ 
approval is sought for major capital projects in accordance 
with Government policy. Ensuring shareholding Ministers 
are informed of possible future projects and associated 
funding requirements.

■ Actively pursuing opportunities to maximise the potential 
of Port-owned land and infrastructure to diversify the 
Authority’s revenue base.

■ Reducing Port infrastructure maintenance costs through 
the introduction of work planning and control principles, 
practices and procedures. 

■ Reducing maintenance costs through the optimisation 
of dredging processes including exploration of emerging 
technology and determining its suitability to the Port of 
Townsville, pursuing competitive rates from contractors 
and monitoring the efficiency and effectiveness of in-house 
capabilities.

■ Reviewing the Authority’s Port pricing structure, and further 
developing competitive pricing where commercially feasible 
to attract new or increased trade.
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Cement 5.39%

Sulphur 1.59% 

Zinc Concentrates 4.00%

Nickel Ore 68.18%

1.25% 

Oil 17.23%

General 2.35%

Sugar 32.83%

Timber 2.83%

High Analysis 
17.54%

Cattle 0.19% 

Molasses 5.29%

Minerals 36.65% Meat Products 1.23%

Sulphuric Acid 0.45%

General 3.00%

Other 9.71%

Indonesia 23.56%

Philippines 10.14%

New Caledonia 33.98%

Singapore 8.44%

Interstate 3.36%

10.81%

Imports Through the Port of Townsville 2003/2004

Exports Through the Port of Townsville 2003/2004

Imports by Country 2003/2004

Coastal

Fertiliser

Fertiliser



27
2003
2004

PO
RT O

F TOW
NSVILLE

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

Sulphur 0.20% 

Timber 1.25%

Sugar 14.41%

Cattle 0.08% 

Molasses 2.34%

Minerals 18.43%

Meat Products 0.54%

Cement 3.01%

Nickel Ore 38.05%

Motor Vehicles 0.15%

8.45% 

Oil 9.61%

Sulphuric Acid 0.20%

General 2.84%

Other 1.75%

USA 3.83%

United Arab Emirates1.56%

United Kingdom 2.85%

Thailand 1.80%

Malaysia 13.70%

Korea 12.84%

Philippines 1.13%Pakistan 2.79%

Japan 19.09%

Indonesia 0.68%

India 7.06%

Taiwan 1.38%

China 6.03%

1.96%

PNG 1.36%

Canada 1.50%

Belgium 2.01%

Bangladesh 1.76%

Australia 14.94%

Vehicle Carrier 7%

Tanker 15%

RORO Cargo 2%

%

Bulk Carrier 34%

Passenger 1%

Other 3%

Naval 3%

Livestock Carrier 1%

General Cargo 26%

Bunker 6%

Vessel Calls 2003/2004

Total Trade by Commodity 2003/2004

Exports by Country 2003/2004

Refrigerated Cargo

Fertiliser

Saudi Arabia
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IN REVIEW: OUR PERFORMANCE
PORT SECURITY
Port Security Plan
Over the past 12 months the Authority has 

dedicated its efforts towards the development 
of a Port Security Plan in accordance with the 
requirements of the Maritime Transport Security Act 
2003 (Cth). This was achieved with the certification 
of the Authority’s plan in June 2004.

The process involved a comprehensive security 
risk assessment in accordance with AS/NZS 
4360:1999 – Risk Management. This methodology 
was recommended for use by the Australian 
Department of Transport and Regional Services, 
which, in Australia, is the organisation designated 
with the responsibility for regulating security. 

Site Security Survey
Running in parallel with the security risk 

assessment process was a site security survey of 
the entire Port area and all the facilities located 
within the Port. The audit process was necessary 

to determine the adequacy of security measures 
currently in operation and to identify opportunities 
for improvement. Security measures in a number of 
areas have now been upgraded as a direct result of 
this site security survey process. 

Port Security Committee
The establishment of the Port Security Committee 

has provided a forum for discussion and resolution on 
all security matters affecting Port operations. Clear 
communication channels are now well established 
to facilitate the new security measures required post 
1 July 2004, e.g., Port entry notification, information 
on crew and approved visitor and contractor lists. 
All Port users are participating with the exchange 
of information which has significantly enhanced the 
success of improved security in the Port area.   

Port Maintenance and Development
The revised maintenance program was com-

menced in 2002/2003 with works over this period 
amounting to a value of approximately $7.7 million.

 Port Infrastructure, Services  & Management



Dredging
Dredging was undertaken over a 

five-week period during August through 
to September in 2003, and approximately 
$2 million was spent. This expenditure is 
down from the original estimate of $3.5 
million as works within the inner harbour 
were not undertaken due to the inability to 
obtain a disposal permit to coincide with 
the visiting dredge - ‘Brisbane’.

Concrete Repairs
Total expenditure for the 2003/2004 

financial year included approximately $1.2 
million in concrete repairs (comparable to 
the $2.2 million spent the previous year). 
These works have focussed on repairing 
sections of the soffit under Berths 8 & 9, 
the patch repair of 57 wharf deck support 
piles under Berths 8 & 9, the completion 
of cathodic protection works and the 
filling of the voids between the ends of 
all pre-stressed support girders under 
Berth 1.

The repairs to all concrete support 
piles under Berth 1 commenced this 
financial year. The majority of this 

maintenance project will take place 
 during the 2004/2005 financial year.

Berth 3 Demolition
The demolition of the old timber wharf 

deck under Berth 3 was completed 
in November 2003. The subsequent 
clean-up and removal of all debris 
associated with this project continued 
until approximately March 2004. Although 
a total of approximately $400,000 was 
consumed this financial year, we can 
finally list the project as complete. It 
is worthwhile noting that a portion of 
the timbers purchased by a commercial 
entity in Brisbane are still stored on 
the site, but are stacked and secured 
awaiting transport. The total cost of this 
project, which has run for more than two 
years, has now reached approximately 
$1.5 million.

Denso Wrapping
In an attempt to further protect 

the Authority’s assets from premature 
deterioration, the Denso Wrapping 
Program which commenced in the 
2001/2002 financial year, continued 
as planned in the 2003/2004 financial 
year. Denso Wrapping is a simple yet 
effective means by which the corrosion 
of support piles above the water line 
can be prevented. All 340 support piles 
under Berth 3 were wrapped during the 
financial year.

Floating Plant
A number of the Authority’s floating 

plant assets were slipped and refurbished 
to varying levels during the 2003/2004 
financial year. The large work barge the 
‘Max Hooper’ was slipped late in the 
financial year, however difficulties with 

the slipping of the vessel resulted in 
only partially high pressure blasting being 
carried out. 

The ‘Arthur Titley’ was lifted out at 
Rosshaven Marine for its two-yearly 
underwater inspections, and an amount 
of deck refurbishment work was also 
completed. The ‘Petrel II’ pilot transfer 
vessel was completely repainted during 
2003/2004.

Modifications were made to the split 
hopper barge ‘Eric Netterfield’ to enable 
it to pump dredge material to a pond 
located at a distance of approximately 
1km. This project, with a budget in excess 
of $1 million, involved a crane and a 
pump being mounted on the barge with a 
booster pump, and a pipeline to transfer 
the dredge material to the Authority’s 
reclamation area. 

The system was successfully 
commissioned this year. However, a 
number of minor operational issues need 
to be addressed in the next financial year 
to improve the efficiency and the safety of 
the system. 

Blue Ferry Terminal
A major repair program was endorsed 

by the Board to be executed during 
the 2003/2004 year to the value of 
$160,000. Some of the more significant 
tasks completed during this program are 
as follows:-
■ Removal and refurbishment of both the 

upstream and downstream boarding 
pontoons.

■ The erection of a protective barrier to 
prevent passengers form congregating 
on the condemned wharf deck.

■ The replacement of a number of 
air-conditioner units.

■ Modifications to the car park and 
ground floor entrances to make them 
compliant with disability standards.

■ Miscellaneous electrical re-wiring 
and tidy up of plant deck on the 
terminal roof.

 Port Infrastructure, Services  & Management

Dredge Area Quantity Disposal Method

Platypus & Sea Channel 143,000m3 Sea Disposal

Outer Harbour 85,500m3 Sea Disposal

Inner Harbour 200,000m3 estimated Works not implemented due to mistiming 
of dredger with Disposal Permit
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$110,000, and the supply of new water mains for a number of 
Port customers at a cost of approximately $75,000.

Part of the above expenditure was on assessment and 
upgrading of the 7km road network inside the Port, and 
preliminary investigations for upgrade of electrical equipment 
and network. This electrical upgrade work will be performed in 
the next financial year.

Ross Creek Reclamation
Stage 1 of Ross Creek reclamation work has been 

postponed to the next financial year to better accommodate 
future reclamation and land demand in this area.

Miscellaneous
In addition to the significant activities described, a number of 

minor activities worth mentioning were undertaken, including:
■ Pumping of grout into the abutment rock wall under Berth 

3 was completed. The pumping of grout into the abutment 
under Berth 1 was also completed.

■ The restabilising of the Suter Pier Shed slab was completed 
at a cost of approximately $150,000. This project involved 
filling the voids under the slab with a ‘filling compound’ that 
sets after it is injected.

■ The replenishment of approximately 50 tonnes of armour 
rock on the Berth 10 sea wall was undertaken.

■ The relining of the outfall pipes and the replacement of the 
weir boxes that drain the reclamation ponds into the ocean.

■ A grab dredging campaign to remove approx 1,000 cubic 
meters of material from the berthing pocket at Berth 2 was 
undertaken. The pump ashore system fitted to the bottom dump 
barge ‘Netterfield’ was used for the first time for this project.

■ A subsequent diving inspection of sections of Berth 2’s 
abutment was conducted to confirm the integrity of the 
abutment. This came as a result of some significantly large 
pieces of rock and/or concrete being found during the grab 
dredging of Berth 2’s pocket. Results of the inspection 
indicate the integrity of the abutment is high.

■ The replacement of 17 unserviceable light fittings from the 
towers on Berths 2, 3 & 4. Additionally, four faulty Class 1 
Zone 1 light fittings were replaced on Berth 1 as a result of 
a formal audit of the area by an electrical safety inspector.

LOOKING AHEAD: OUR OBJECTIVES
Some of the areas we will be focussing on during 2004/2005 in 
relation to Port infrastructure, services and management include:-

SECURITY

Port Security Upgrade
In order for the Authority to achieve full compliance with the 

new International Ship and Port Facility Security (ISPS) Code 
and the Maritime Transport Security Legislation, the works 
identified in the Authority’s Port Security Plan are required to 
be undertaken during 2004/2005. The capital works to achieve 
full compliance as identified in the plan are valued at approxi-
mately $1.3 million.

Fenders & Spill Plate Upgrades
The remaining 40m of fender/

whaler upgrade was completed on 
Berth 3 this financial year providing a 
uniform continuous fender line along 
the quay line of Berths 2 & 3.

Much the same was also done on 
Berth 4 whereby the existing short 
sections of continuous fendering were 
refurbished and upgraded to match 
that on Berths 2 & 3.

Essential Services
Of works undertaken during the 

year, approximately $750,000 was 
allocated for essential work. These 
included the upgrading of safety 
issues such as fire fighting equipment 
and exit ladders at a total cost of 
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Once implemented, the works will 
achieve upgraded security at the three 
Port entrances and security at wharfs. 
The project includes construction of 
new roads, installation of new gates, 
cameras, access control systems and 
wharf fencing.

Furthermore the project will involve 
a communications upgrade and include 
the installation of three new CCTV 
cameras.  

Other security matters that the 
Authority will be focussing on over the 
next 12 months include:-
■ Implementing security measures as 

required under the Port Security Plan, 
including the introduction of waterside 
security.

■ Working closely with the Port com-
munity to educate and encourage a 
security culture within the Port.

■ Conducting a security desktop and 
live exercise annually involving the Port 
community and all relevant authorities 
to raise awareness and competency 
levels. Review and update plan as a 
result of exercises. 

■ Managing the issues that may arise as 
a consequence of the introduction of 
the new security measures, to ensure 
there is minimal disruption to trade 
and its associated operations.

■ Developing and implementing 
security procedures to protect 
critical infrastructure from external 
threats.

■ Conducting an annual audit to 
determine the adequacy of security 
measures to protect critical 
infrastructure. 

■ Developing and implementing security 
measures for critical infrastructure. This 
will incorporate the recommendations 
from the Port Security Plan, including 
development of procedures, business 
continuity planning, scheduling of 
emergency exercises and conducting 
regular audits.

Port Maintenance and Development
The Authority will ensure that existing 

critical items of infrastructure are 
maintained in an optimal manner and 
secure from external threats by:-
■ Establishing performance criteria for 

each critical item.

■ Developing and implementing short 
term maintenance plans for critical 
infrastructure.

Concrete Repairs
Concrete repairs for the coming year 

will focus on Berth 1 where a total 
of 190 piles will be encapsulated to 
repair cracking due to Alkali Aggregate 
Reaction. Although a number of piles 
were encapsulated before the end of the 
2003/2004 financial year, it is intended 
that the remainder will be completed 
during the 2004/2005 year with the total 
project estimated at $3.6 million.

The challenge to both the contractor 
and the Authority is to work around 
shipping operations and complete the 
job on time and within budget. Once 
complete, the pile encapsulation work is 
expected to extend the life of Berth 1 by 
approximately twenty years.

Dredging
A permit has been obtained to dredge 

the Inner Harbour and for disposal to 
the sea dump site. This is the first 
time this area has been dredged in 
more than 12 years. The Authority is 
expecting to undertake dredging works 
costing approximately $3 million for the 
2004/2005 year in the following areas:- 

During 2004/2005, the Authority will 
develop and implement a Long Term 
Dredge Material Disposal Strategy to 
improve efficiencies in dredging and 
dredge material handling.

Fender Upgrades
The Port of Townsville will upgrade 

fenders on Berths 7 and 9 over the 
course of the coming year. The project 
budgets are $1.6 million and $295,000 
respectively. 

Whilst the job on Berth 9 will be a 
simple extension of the existing discrete 
system from the 0 to 40m marks, the 
project for Berth 7 will be more detailed. 
Berth 7 sits back-to-back with a much 

older wharf (Berth 6) that has reached 
the end of its life and an upgrade to the 
fender system is required to facilitate 
the demolition of Berth 6 in subsequent 
years. Modelling has shown that by 
moving to a discrete fender type system, 
the need for additional works to maintain 
the structural integrity of Berth 7 once 
Berth 6 is demolished will be minimised.

Miscellaneous
■ Replacing a section of the main Berth 

Fire line that runs along the deck of 
Berth 1.

■ Major repairs to all safety walkways 
and handrails on Berth 11.

■ Denso wrap all support piles under 
Berth 4.

■ Repair/refurbishment of fender cluster 
piles on sea-end of Berth 7.

Dredge Area Estimated Quantity Disposal Method

Platypus  & Sea Channel 200,000m3 Sea Disposal

Outer Harbour 150,000m3 Sea Disposal

Inner Harbour 200,000m3 Sea Disposal
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IN REVIEW: 
OUR PERFORMANCE

MOSQUITO MANAGEMENT PROGRAM
Mosquito control and monitoring is 

carried out at the Port of Townsville by 
the Australian Quarantine and Inspection 
Service (AQIS) in co-operation with the 
Authority. Due to the nature of Port 
activities, notably cargo transfer and the 
presence of international vessels, the 
Port is classified as a high-risk area for 
the introduction of foreign vectors or 
diseases. We are committed to working 
with AQIS to control mosquito popula-
tions and encourage the Port community 
to take comparable action. A Mosquito 
Management Plan has been developed 
to minimise the risk of establishment 
and/or residency of target mosquito 
species at the Port. This program also 
aims to increase Port-wide understand-
ing of the problem and to promote 
vigilance in the detection and control of 
breeding sites. 

2003
2004

3232

PO
RT O

F TOW
NSVILLE32

 TOW
NSVILLE32

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T32

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T3232

 TOW
NSVILLE32

 TOW
NSVILLE3232

 TOW
NSVILLE3232

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T3232323232

 TOW
NSVILLE3232

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T3232

PO
RT O

F TOW
NSVILLE

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

RESEARCH SPONSORSHIP
The Authority recognises the benefits of post-graduate 

research to the Port and to the region. We encourage research 
in the Townsville region, joining forces with James Cook 
University (JCU), the Australian Institute of Marine Science 
(AIMS), CRC Reef and Port customers to support students  
through direct financial contributions, information transfer, 
access to Port facilities and offering students a combination of 
these. Current studies supported by the Authority include: 

Andrew Rumsby (Honours student, Department of Civil 
and Environmental Engineering, James Cook University)

Project Aims: To construct a fine scale hydrodynamic model 
of the Port of Townsville to investigate water quality issues. This 
will include the creation of a 3D water residence map used in 
conjunction with particle settling velocities to investigate water 
retention and settling distributions within the Port.

Joanne Clarke (PHD student, Department of Chemistry, 
James Cook University – scholarship under the Australian 
Postgraduate Award Industry)

Project Aims: To investigate arsenic speciation in waters 
and sediment of Cleveland Bay and to consider controls on 
arsenic uptake in a commercial crab species. By investigating  
speciation this project will provide information on the natural 
processes that influence the accumulation of arsenic in the 
tropical marine environment, as well as providing information to 
assist in the assessment of the human health risk associated 
with the consumption of tropical marine species.

Planning & Environment
Encrusting coral at the western breakwater
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Alessandra Mantovanelli (PHD 
student, Department of Physics, James 
Cook University)

Project Aims: To develop and test 
a new approach for measuring in situ 
settling velocities and suspended 
sediment concentrations. The fragile 
nature of suspended sediment aggregates 
makes it virtually impossible to reproduce 
natural environmental conditions in the 
laboratory as such. Sediment settling 
velocities must be measured in the field 
to obtain accurate information. This study 
aims to develop new technology to mea-
sure the natural environmental conditions.

ENVIRONMENTAL INCIDENTS
A reportable environmental incident is 

any confirmed event or action occurring 
within the jurisdiction of the Port, as a 
result of a Port-related activity, that has 
an impact or potential impact, on the land, 
water, atmosphere, flora or fauna. 

Environmental incidents are reported 
by the Authority’s employees, Port 
customers, members of the public 
and regulatory agencies. All reported 
environmental incidents are recorded in 
a database, investigated and, if required, 
actions taken to mitigate the impact and 
ensure methods are in place to prevent 
reoccurrence in the future. Information 
regarding environmental incidents is 
disseminated to the Port community 
quarterly at Environmental Working Group 
meetings. 

Figure 1 shows the total number of 
reported environmental incidents recorded 
each year. A slight increase was seen in 
the total number of incidents recorded 
for the 2003/2004 year compared to the 
previous year although there has been 
an overall decrease since 1996/1997. 
As environmental awareness continues 
to increase, improvements in general 
operations’ management procedures are 
evident resulting in fewer environmental 
incidents. However, the increase in 
awareness of companies and employees 
may also result in increased reporting of 
incidents. This year more than 50% of the 
incident reports were received from the 
Port community (increased from less than 
10% in 2002/2003 and 2001/2002), and 
a further 33% reported by the Authority’s 
employees. This is a very encouraging result 
and demonstrates that the Port community 
is committed to environmental reporting and 
incident management. 

Figure two shows the breakdown of 
environmental incidents recorded in the 
2003/2004 period. The incidents have 
been grouped into the following cat-
egories:- oil spill: any incident involving 
oil coming in contact with water; dust; 
product spill: any spill involving prod-
ucts transported through the Port; faunal 
incident; discharge to water: any non oil 
based discharge to water; oil spill land: 
any oil based spill that does not come into 
contact with water, and other: includes 
incidents relating to odours, sewerage, 
etc. 

Figure 2 shows oil spills on land 
were the most common incident reported 
with seven incidents recorded. Prompt 
response to these incidents ensured that 
all of these spills were prevented from 
entering the water. 

DUST MONITORING 
The Port of Townsville’s long-term dust 

monitoring program was developed to 
ensure that dust emissions at the Port of 
Townsville remained within acceptable 
limits and have a minimal effect on 
the environment. The program aims 
to monitor inhalable particulate matter 
(PM10) which is harmful to human health. 
It also aims to detect sources of elevated 
dust emissions and to assist in the 
development of appropriate management 
techniques to prevent any potential 
problems stemming from identified source 
activities.

The Port of Townsville recognised 
that dust emissions from port activities 
could potentially impact the surrounding 
areas and an integrated and co-operative 
approach was adopted in 1994. This 
approach was developed to minimise 
dust emissions from dry bulk commodity 
storage and transfer operations, 
reclamation works, earth moving and 
construction activities and general port 
operations, and to monitor the fugitive 
dust emissions associated with port 
operations that may impact on the 
receiving environment, the city or local 
residents.

The Port of Townsville’s long-term 
dust monitoring program is implemented 
as a co-operative initiative between the 
Authority, the Environmental Protection 
Agency, Queensland Nickel Ltd, BHP 
Billiton, Xstrata Copper Australia and 
WMC Fertilizers. 

The main component of the dust 
monitoring program is a transportable 
Dust Monitoring Station. The station 
features a tapered element oscillating 
microbalance (TEOM) ambient particulate 
(PM10) monitor, an automatic cartridge 
collection unit (ACCU) system, and asso-
ciated wind sensors and data logging 
equipment. This station is located at the 
Northern end of Berth 10. As Townsville 
experiences predominantly easterly winds 
this location places the station in a direct 
line between Port operations and the City 
of Townsville. Results from this station 
are compared to national guidelines and 
for 2003/2004 dust emissions at the 
Port were within acceptable guidelines. 
The results are also considered against 
comparable dust monitoring stations 
located within the Townsville region with 
port emissions considered consistent 
with other industrial locations.
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Figure 3

Figure 3 shows wind speed and direction for 

2003/2004. The predominant wind direction for 

the 2003/2004 year was from a north easterly 

through to an easterly direction (approximately 

40% of the time), the highest wind speeds 

recorded (4-5m/s) were also from this direction.

Figure 4 

Figure 4 shows the direction of collection and 

concentration of dust particles at the Port for 

the 2003/2004 sampling period. The majority of 

PM10 particles recorded were below 39µg/m3 

and were recorded predominantly from a north-

easterly through to a southerly direction. The 

highest dust concentrations (>39 µg/m3) were 

also recorded from a north-easterly through to 

a southerly direction. Port activities are unlikely 

to influence dust results recorded from a south-

erly direction, as such the dust results from the 

south are indicative of the Townsville region 

and wind carried particulate matter. The graph 

shows that wind speed and direction has a large 

impact on recorded PM10. Port activities have 

not significantly impacted dust concentration for 

2003/2004. 

TRADE WASTE AGREEMENT 
Townsville Port Authority provides a sewerage system for 

the transport and treatment of domestic sewage and trade 
waste generated within the commercial port area. A trade 
waste agreement has been developed to ensure cost-efficient 
waste disposal opportunities for port customers whilst also 
ensuring the efficient operation of the sewage treatment 
facility. The agreement also allows for the implementation of the 
polluter pays system if shock loads are discharged to the 
facility, with dischargers responsible for meeting sewerage 
system repair costs.

The basis of the policy for discharge of trade waste to 
sewer is a two-category approval system for trade waste 
generators, taking into account the amount and type of waste 
discharged. An approval to dispose of liquid waste will be 
issued, dependent on the volume and strength of waste 
discharged. The current program ensures that trade waste 
discharged to the Port of Townsville sewerage system from 
commercial and industrial businesses complies with the 
sewer admission limits set by the Port of Townsville policy for 
discharge of trade waste to sewer.

ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING GROUP
The Environmental Working Group (EWG) was developed 

by the Port community in early 1995 to facilitate the 
continued development and implementation of integrated and 
co-ordinated environmental management initiatives, ensuring 
the protection and maintenance of the port environment. The 
EWG has had continual support from the Townsville Port 
Authority and the Port community. 

SEDIMENT
The Authority has been carrying out a long-term sediment 

monitoring program since May 1995. This program was 
implemented primarily to manage dredging operations at the 
Port of Townsville, ensuring a high standard of environmental 
protection. It acts as a guide for determining the suitability 
of dredged material for relocation at sea and on land, 
thereby maintaining sustainable dredged material manage-
ment methods. In addition, the program assists the port com-
munity by acting as a management tool for product handling 
activities throughout the Port. It also introduces an effective 
means of monitoring the effects of Port operations on the 
marine environment, thereby allowing the introduction of a pol-
luter pays method of dredged material management.

The sampling program includes the collection of 242 
samples quarterly, from the Inner Harbour, Outer Harbour, 
Ross Creek, Ross River, Platypus Channel and Sea Channel 
which are analysed for a suite of heavy metals. The Port of 
Townsville Long Term Sediment Monitoring Program aims to 
ensure that all heavy metal concentrations within the sedi-
ments of the Port area are consistent with guideline values in 
respect of the disposal of dredged material. 
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Figure 5 shows the changes in the annual mean concentrations (mg/kg) of 

four primary bulk commodities handled at the Port over time, Copper, Lead, 

Nickel, and Zinc in the Inner Harbour. All metals show a dominant downward 

trend within the Inner Harbour since sampling began in 1995 except copper 

which has remained relatively stable over time.  

  Figure 5

CLIPPINGS
■ In March 2004, 17 volunteers donated their time to clean 

up the Environmental Park, streets surrounding the Port and 
Fisherman’s wharf as part of ‘Clean Up Australia Day’. This 
was a successful day with volunteers including employees 
and Directors of the Authority and Xstrata Copper.

■ The Port Community, led by QNI are providing students 
from the School of Engineering at James Cook University 
an insight into the workings of the facilities and the issues 
faced by a professional engineer. This tour allows students 
to gain valuable information regarding possible future career 
directions.

■ ‘Creek to Coral’ is a combined Townsville/Thuringowa local 
and state Government initiative to maintain and enhance our 
healthy waterways in the coastal dry tropics. The initial focus 
is on environmental protection, emergency response, water 
quality monitoring and research, to ensure our waterways 
are healthy and managed sustainably. The Townsville Port 
Authority is committed to this project, and through it port-
wide monitoring is able to be integrated into the whole of 
the catchment management initiatives.

■ As part of the port greening program 33 trees were 
planted on the ‘Planet Ark National Tree Day’ (July 2003) 
by 15 volunteers from the Authority and the Environmental 
Protection Agency. Most of these trees are located on 

Benwell Road next to the eastern 
reclamation area. A further 64 trees 
were planted in 2003/2004 by the 
Authority and additional greening pro-
grams are planned for the future as the 
Authority works closely with the wider 
Port community to encourage vegeta-
tion of the Port environment.

LOOKING AHEAD: 
OUR OBJECTIVES

Some of the areas we will be focus-
sing on during 2004/2005 in relation to 
planning and environment include:-
■ To review and develop a co-ordi-

nated approach to strategic planning 
for future development of the Port, 
including the development and imple-
mentation of a new Port Development 
Plan and Trade Utilisation Study.

■ Review and improve internal 
processes to facilitate and enhance 
efficiency of development assessment 
under the Integrated Development 
Assessment System (IDAS) including 
the establishment of a more suitable 
framework to effectively and efficiently 
handle IDAS applications. Policies 
will be developed to ensure cohesive 
land use planning so that future 
development of Port land achieves the 
highest economic return, whilst at the 
same time complying with legislative, 
business and social requirements.

■ Develop and promote sustainable Port 
management including the exploration 
of renewable energy opportunities.

■ Develop a proactive and pragmatic 
system of integrated and co-opera-
tive environmental management, 
including the revision of the Authority’s 
Environmental Management Plan by 
2004.
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IN REVIEW: 
OUR PERFORMANCE

REACHING OUR AUDIENCE
Internal and external publications play 

an integral part in how we communicate 
information to our employees and the 
wider community.

Our monthly employee newsletter 
aims to build cohesion and idea-sharing 
amongst our employees who, often 
because of the nature or location of their 
job, do not interact face-to-face.

Our external website and quarterly 
external newsletter, ‘rapPORT’, form the 
basis of our interaction with our outside 
audiences, including everyone from Port 
users to the general public.

CUSTOMER SERVICE
In April 2004, the Authority adopted a new Customer 

Service Policy geared to provide our external and internal 
customers with a courteous, timely and efficient service that 
will exceed customer expectations. In order to continuously 
improve our services, we will encourage and use ongoing 
customer feedback to help establish our customer service 
standards and performance measures, and share results with 
our customers.  

COMPLAINTS 
In April 2004, the Authority implemented a revised 

Complaints Handling Policy to ensure any complaints received 
are correctly logged and investigated.

43 formal complaints were registered this year comprising: 
Dust, noise, vehicles  23
Other   20
39 complaints were addressed and resolved during 

2003/2004.

Community & People



COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS
The worth of an organisation is 

reflected in a number of ways, one of 
which can be measured by its impact on 
the community.  At the Port of Townsville, 
our philosophy is simple. 

We understand that the impact of 
our actions and operations affects our 
customers, clients, employees and 
the broader community. We take our 
commitment as a corporate citizen 
seriously and actively participate 
in community involvement to build 
relationships with our stakeholders.  

Financial sponsorships and donations 
are assessed in accordance with our 
Sponsorship and Donation Policy, which 
incorporates elements of, and is consistent 
with the Queensland Government 
Sponsorship Policy (August 2003).

The Authority actively promotes Port 
tours and educational programs for local 
and regional schools, community groups 
and business partners.  

In 2003/2004 the Authority 
expended over $40,000 on donations 
and sponsorships to local charities, local 
business activities, cultural events, trade 
events, tourism and mining activities.  
Some of these are detailed above.

In addition to the above, the 
Authority is a major benefactor/sponsor 
of the Townsville Maritime Museum. In 
2003/2004, the Authority contributed 
both financially and in-kind support to 
the Museum at a value of approximately 
$69,600.00.

2003/2004 also saw the final year of 
the Authority’s five-year commitment to 
the Strand Sand Replenishment Program 

with a closing contribution of $50,000.  
This program involved contributions 
by a number of local agencies and 
departments to ensure the replenishment 
of sand following the development of the 
acclaimed ‘Strand’ development.

In September 2003, the Port 
Community joined together in a 
fundraising effort that provided the North 
Queensland Paralympics Committee with 
almost $6,000.  The funds were raised 
through hole sponsorships and team 
nomination fees at the Port’s annual 
Charity Golf Day. 

Australian Red Cross Donation (3 year sponsorship paid in 2003/2004) $7,000.00

Copper City Cycling Club – Carnival Sponsorship $2,727.27

James Cook University Academic Prizes $1,350.00

‘Making Minerals Move’ Sponsorship $2,000.00

Townsville Region Export Awards Sponsorship $3,000.00

Cancer Society ‘Relay for Life’ Donation $2,500.00

Salvation Army Donation $5,000.00

North Queensland Tourism Awards Sponsorship $1,500.00

James Cook University - Asia Pacific Model UN Conference $5,000.00
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SUPPORTING THE RED CROSS
The Port community rolled up their 

sleeves when the Red Cross mobile 
blood van visited the Port as part of a 
regular and ongoing donation program.  
The Port community plays host to the 
Red Cross on a quarterly basis, with 
employees and members of the Port 
community taking time to assist the Red 
Cross in its blood drive.

THE PORT CITY THAT GREW
In 2003 Townsville celebrated its first 

100 years of being declared a city, with 
the milestone also highlighting the key 
role the Port played in the establishment, 
development and growth of this vibrant, 
dynamic city. 

Given the Port of Townsville’s long and 
close association with the city, we featured 
prominently in the year-long celebrations 
as a major sponsor celebrating this signifi-
cant event in history.

We were the major sponsor of the Port 
of Townsville Centenary City Sky Show 
fireworks spectacular that attracted more 
than 80,000 spectators. The Authority 
contributed $100,000 to this event.

TOWNSVILLE ENTERPRISE
Townsville Port Authority is a major 

sponsor of Townsville Enterprise Ltd., an 
organisation which promotes economic 
growth in Townsville. In 2003/2004, 
we contributed $62,000 to Townsville 
Enterprise Ltd.

EMPLOYMENT AND INDUSTRIAL 
RELATIONS 
The Authority employs 68 full time 

employees in various supervisory, 
professional, technical, trade and 
administrative positions.  In addition, the 
Authority has two casual employees in 
the marine services area.  

The Authority recognises the 
importance of our people as one of our 
most valuable assets, and has demon-
strated this by the inclusion of our people 
as a Corporate Value of the Authority:-

“Promoting motivation and 
enthusiasm through open and honest 
communication, recognition of employee 
contributions and performance, and 
creating opportunities for employees 
and their career development.”

The following objectives and goals have been specifically 
developed to ensure our employees are motivated and enthu-
siastic:
■ Develop and implement a Succession Plan and Employee 

Development and Leadership Program which develops the 
skills and qualifications of employees, and encourages their 
professional growth and development.

■ Maintain an internal culture that challenges and motivates 
the individual and which recognises and rewards above 
average performance.

■ Maintain an organisational structure that supports the 
Authority’s Vision, Mission and Corporate Values, and which 
fully-utilises human resources.

■ Ensure communication channels throughout the 
organisation are open, candid, informative and of benefit 
to employees at all levels of the Authority.
The Authority will be conducting regular Employee 

Satisfaction Surveys to gauge satisfaction levels in areas 
such as:- job satisfaction; remuneration; communication 
efficiencies; management and Board leadership and direc-
tion; organisational effectiveness and opportunities for career 
development.

SIGNIFICANT AND EMERGING ISSUES
The Authority considers the most significant and emerging 

issues that affect human resources and industrial relations at 
the Port of Townsville are:-
■ The ability to attract appropriately skilled employees of high 

calibre, particularly with maritime industry knowledge; and
■ Loss of corporate knowledge through inability to retain 

those employees who have extensive maritime industry 
knowledge.
The Board of the Authority has an active Human Resources 

Committee with a charter to assist the Board in fulfilling its 
corporate governance responsibilities by reviewing, monitoring 
and establishing human resources policy frameworks.

The Authority has developed and commenced the 
implementation of a Succession Plan which was approved by 
the Board of Directors on 19 August 2003. This Plan is aimed 
at reducing our exposures in the event of losing critical posi-
tions and corporate knowledge from a contingency planning 
and business continuity perspective, and also at developing 
the skills and knowledge of our employees to assist in ensuring 
satisfactory career development options. 

The Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and 
Managers have identified critical positions and have completed 
a skills analysis for critical positions.  

Over the next 12 months, the Authority will com-
mence implementation of the Employee Development and 
Leadership Program, allowing employees to attain the nec-
essary skills and qualifications to reach their own career 
aspirations, and ensuring the integrity of the Authority’s 
knowledge base.
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TRAINING AND EDUCATION
All data relating to Authority’s training 

for the past 30 years was documented 
and then transferred to the Authority’s 
fully-integrated Business Management 
System (Pronto). All training records are 
now centralised and up-to-date, simpli-
fying the reporting of past training and 
enabling a more accurate analysis of 
future training needs.

The Authority has in place a Study 
Policy which recognises the importance 
of developing the skills and qualifications 
of our employees. In 2003/2004, the 
Authority expended $57,497.04 on 
employee training and development.

Tertiary Studies
There are currently seven employees 

undertaking tertiary studies either partially 
or fully-funded by the Authority. These 
include:-
1 x Bachelor of Laws 

(graduated in March 2004)
1 x Masters of Information Technology
2 x Diploma of Maintenance Management
3 x Masters of Business Administration 

(MBA)

International Computer Driving Licence 
(ICDL)
The Authority is well advanced to 

improving our employees’ computer 
literacy and ability. In the first half of 
2004 the Authority became an ICDL 
accredited test centre, which allows us 
to run a training program that will help 
our employees become as familiar with 
‘driving’ a computer as they are with 
driving a motor vehicle. It is expected 
that 30 employees will be tested and 
accredited during the next financial year.

EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS AND 
ENTERPRISE BARGAINING
Enterprise Agreements currently in 

operation at the Authority are:-
■ No. T1805 - Townsville Port Authority 

Maintenance Employees Certified 
Agreement 2001-2004 between 
the Authority and Maritime Union of 
Australia (MUA) covers twenty-one 
(21) maintenance employees. Under 
this agreement an average of 38 hours 
per week are worked over a four week 
cycle between the hours of 6 a.m. and 
6 p.m., Monday to Friday.

■ No. AG801367 - Townsville Port 
Authority Port Services Enterprise 
Agreement 2000-2002 (incorporating 
the Townsville Port Authority Port 
Services Integration Agreement 2001) 
between the Authority and Australian 
Maritime Officers Union (AMOU) 
covers 14 Port Services employees. 
Work hours under this agreement are 
in accordance with the Port Control 
Roster, and average 39.5 hours per 
week. This agreement expired on 
30 June 2002. An updated three 
year Agreement, the Port Services 
Enterprise Agreement 2004, has been 
drafted and negotiations with the 
AMOU to finalise this agreement have 
been completed. This new agreement 
will be certified during 2004.
Negotiations with the AMOU towards 

an Enterprise Agreement covering the 
Authority’s Administrative, Technical, 
Supervisory and Professional employees 
are continuing, with a draft document 
recently circulated to employees. This 
agreement will affect 28 employees. All 
are currently employed under individual 
contracts, and working a 36.25 hour 
week. It is expected that this Agreement 
will be certified during 2004. 

The Authority recently engaged 
Workplace Consulting Queensland, a 
commercial unit within the Department of 
Industrial Relations, to finalise the above 
Agreements.

EMPLOYEE FLEXIBILITY
A range of practices are in place 

which promote flexibility for the Authority 
and employees with regard to hours of 
work and work loads.

Maintenance employees are entitled 
to a Rostered Day Off (RDO) every 
fourth week on the basis that each week 
a minimum of forty hours per week are 
worked, of which two hours are banked 
to allow for an RDO on the Monday of 
each fourth week. Subject to operational 
requirements and mutual consent of the 
parties, this RDO may be changed to 
another day.

Start and finish times for maintenance 
employees are also determined in 
accordance with operational require-
ments to ensure that work is carried out 
in an efficient, effective and productive 
manner. Time worked in excess of 40 
hours per week may be paid, or time off 
taken at a mutually agreed time.

Although scheduled hours for 
administration, technical and professional 
employees are 8.45 a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday 
to Friday, it is recognised that the roles 
of these employees are task-orientated 
rather than time-based. Accordingly a 
degree of flexibility is available, subject 
to the approval of the employee’s 
supervisor, including allowance for family 
arrangements on a case-by-case basis.
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EMPLOYEE CHANGES AND 
APPOINTMENTS
Thirteen employees left the Authority 

during 2003/2004. Of these, two were 
University work experience students whilst 
the remaining 11 employees accepted 
positions with other organisations or 
left to travel overseas. Eight employees 
joined the Authority during 2003/2004 in 
the Planning & Environment, Engineering, 
Corporate Governance and Finance 
departments. 

USE OF APPRENTICES AND TRAINEES
The Authority has recently advertised 

to employ a Cadet Drafting Officer for 
a cadetship period of four years. The 
Authority has also met recently with a 
representative from Townsville College 
of TAFE regarding the employment of an 
Apprentice in the trade of Boilermaking.  
The Authority is currently examining 
the best employment option for such 
an Apprentice and intends to make an 
appointment by the end of 2004.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
(EEO) AND ANTI-DISCRIMINATION
The Authority has adopted policies 

in relation to EEO, anti-discrimination 
and the prevention of harassment and 
bullying.  These policies are included in 
the induction training of all employees, 
and are the subject of regular awareness 
briefings.  Employees are selected on 
the basis of skills and abilities as per 
the Authority’s Recruitment and Selection 
Procedures Policy.  The Authority currently 
employs 13 women, of whom three are in 
management or senior positions.

REDUNDANCY POLICY
At their March 2001 Board Meeting, 

the Board of Directors approved a 
Redundancy Policy for Townsville Port 
Authority.

The Policy sets out a series of steps 
when a position becomes redundant 
including:
■ Retraining and redeployment 

opportunities will be investigated for 
affected individuals.

■ Voluntary redundancy options will be 
canvassed, taking into account the 
benefits and costs to the Authority in 
each individual case. Acceptance of 
voluntary redundancies will be at the 
discretion of the Authority.  
Redundancy payments to the last 

employees to leave the Authority were 
calculated on the basis of three weeks 
per year of service with four weeks pay 
in lieu of notice if under 45 years of age 
with an extra week in lieu for employees 
over 45 years of age. This arrangement 
has been formalised in the Enterprise 
Agreements currently under negotiation.

A recent review of this policy has seen 
new provisions added which prevent the 
immediate re-employment of those who 
have received a redundancy package, in 
line with recent Government Directives.  
These provisions will also be applicable 
to former employees who are re-engaged 
on a consultancy basis.

Employment policies will be reviewed 
to allow for the adherence to any formal 
direction given by shareholding Ministers on 
matters relating to position redundancies. 

Where opportunities arise through 
natural attrition to reduce employee 
numbers to a level consistent with 
operational demands, those opportunities 
will be taken.

The Authority remains committed to 
the policy of no forced redundancies 
unless approved by shareholding 
Ministers. No voluntary redundancies 
were offered during 2003/2004 and the 
Authority does not envisage the need for 
redundancies in the foreseeable future.  

JOB SECURITY
The Authority is committed to 

providing long term job security to all 
employees. The Authority currently has 22 
employees with 10+ years’ service, with 
six of these employees being employed 
for over 20 years.  The Authority’s longest 
serving employee will celebrate his 30th 
anniversary later this year.

SUPERANNUATION 
Townsville Port Authority employees 

have two options under the Q-Super 
Scheme, either contributory or non-
contributory.

Contributory
Employees may contribute up to 5% 

of their base wage to the scheme.  The 
Authority then contributes an equivalent 
amount plus an additional 7.75% of the 
employee’s base wage.  Employees can 
elect to be a member of either the Defined 
Benefits Plan (forty employees) or the 
Accumulation Plan (five employees).

Non-Contributory
Employees who decide not to 

make contributions (21 employees) will 
have an amount as determined by the 
Superannuation Guarantee Legislation 
paid into the Q-Super Accumulation Plan 
by the Authority.  This amount is currently 
9% of the base wage. The Authority 
will continue to actively encourage 
employees to become contributing 
members of superannuation, to attend 
QSuper seminars when in Townsville, 
and to consider the long-term benefits of 
salary sacrifice and additional voluntary 
contributions.

CURRENT LONG SERVING EMPLOYEES (20+ YEARS SERVICE)
Name Position Commencement Date

Trevor Beasley Operator Labourer 09/09/1974

Warren Walsh Tradesperson 07/05/1975

Scott Martin Human Resources Officer 12/10/1978

Robert Morris Operator Labourer 21/07/1980

Gillian Sharp Secretary Engineering 28/07/1983

David King Manager Marine Services 21/06/1984



MANUAL OF HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
The Authority recently released a Manual of Human Resource 

Management to all employees. This Manual details the policies 
and procedures in operation at the Authority, including:
■ Recruitment and Selection Procedures.
■ Equity Policy comprising Equal Employment Opportunity, 

Inappropriate Discrimination, Sexual Harassment and 
Workplace Bullying.

■ Code of Conduct.
■ Information Technology User Policy.
■ Drug and Alcohol Policy.
■ Redundancy Policy.
■ Superannuation Benefits available to employees through 

QSuper.
■ Corporate Uniform Policy.
■ Safety Management Plan.
■ Leave Provisions.

MANAGING OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY 
Townsville Port Authority (TPA) works closely with Port 

users, suppliers, contractors and employees to implement 
a comprehensive occupational health and safety (OH&S) 
management plan. 

For over one hundred years, the TPA has created a work 
environment that values diversity in ideas, experience, teamwork, 
ethical behaviour and performance excellence. 

The outstanding health and safety performance throughout 
2003/2004 by the Authority’s labour force protected lives, 
property, reduced insurance costs, averted liability claims, built 
productivity and morale and enhanced our image to all Port 
users and visitors.

To be amongst the best requires training, individual 
awareness, discipline and never dropping our guard and a 
personal commitment that begins with the Board and Chief 
Executive Officer and is shared by every employee.

 Safety Management Plan
Our recently developed Safety Management Plan is 

designed to provide a safe port by encouraging a proactive 
approach to the prevention of work-related illnesses and/or 
injury by eliminating workplace hazards.

This plan also details our safety objectives, which are to:
■ Provide a safe working environment.
■ Foster an environment of trust and mutual respect.
■ Continuously improve our safety management by setting 

measurable objectives and targets and monitoring our 
success in achieving them.

■ Ensure all employees receive adequate and appropriate 
training to assist them to work safely.

■ Promote our Safety Management Plan to all employees, 
contractors and Port users.

■ Ensure all workers are aware of their obligations and comply 
with relevant legislation.

■ Respond to and investigate all acci-
dents and incidents.

■ Encourage employees to actively 
contribute to improving safety within 
the Port.

■ Provide adequate and appropriate 
resources.
A preliminary audit of the Safety 

Management Plan was carried out by 
Microrisk, a division of Integrated Risk 
Systems Pty. Ltd., during October 2003.  

TRAINING AND AWARENESS
Training and Awareness programs 

implemented in 2003/2004 included:
■ Presentations to employees on 

positive OH&S culture.
■ Working at heights.
■ Senior First Aid.
■ Emergency evacuation drills.
■ Safety Representatives.
■ WH&S for Managers & Supervisors.
■ Fire extinguisher operation.
■ Manual handling and ergonomics. 
■ Confined Space.

Regular safety/communication 
meetings are held with employees. 
376 TPA inductions where carried out 
throughout 2003/2004.

SENIOR FIRST AID
The Authority was instrumental in 

initiating first aid training for all interested 
employees and their partners in 2004. 
This course will again be offered in early 
2005.

DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY
Implementation of a Drug and Alcohol 

Policy has commenced with education 
sessions conducted with all employees.  
Base line testing of all employees was 
completed during 2003. The positive 
contribution of employee representatives 
in the formulation of this Policy is 
warmly acknowledged. This policy 
was implemented so that employees 
and visitors to the Port of Townsville 
can conduct their work and business 
in a safe and hazard free environment.  
Random testing of employees for alcohol 
and other drugs will commence during 
2004/2005.
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LOST TIME INJURY FREQUENCY RATE
The port operated for 265 days of the 

past year without a Lost Time Injury. The 
yearly Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate 
(LTIFR) is 8.5 injuries per 1,000,000 man-
hours worked. This was well below the 
previous year and lower than the industry 
average in Australia.

STATISTICS

WORKCOVER CLAIMS
WorkCover claims for 2003/2004 

decreased significantly from the previous 
period. Two medical expense only claims 
were accepted by WorkCover. These 
are well below the industry and State 
averages.

LOOKING AHEAD: 
OUR OBJECTIVES

COMMUNICATIONS AND COMMUNITY 
INITIATIVES 

■ In 2004/2005, the Port will commence 
an educational alliance with the 
Townsville South Primary School 
called the ‘Port of Townsville School 
Education Program’. This will be a 
long-term program of co-operation 
and education regarding Port 
operations and the marine environment 
integrated into the school curriculum.

INDICATOR 2000-2001 2001-2002 2002-2003 2003-2004 

Total Number of Employees 75 75 71 74

Hours worked 147,922 135,018 120,503 116,975

Lost Time Incidents 3 2 5 1

Lost Time Injury 
Frequency Rate

20.28 14.81 41.49 8.54

Average Lost Time Rate 62 days 8 days 12.9 days 3 days

Incident Rate 17.3 25.3 29.5 6.7

The program aims to improve students’ understanding of the 
commercial Port environment including Port operations, ship-
ping activities and port development whilst also providing an 
opportunity to promote awareness of marine environmental 
matters.

■ The Authority will expand external communications through 
additional targeted publications, and a Port information 
series aimed at educating the wider community, including 
Port customers and local industries, on the Port’s functions, 
roles, powers and operations.

■ A Port Community Group will be established, comprising 
representatives of the community as nominated by the 
community. The Port Community Group will provide 
communication channels to ensure that both activities 
and developments at the Port are conveyed to the wider 
community, and also that community concerns and ideas are 
delivered to the Authority. 

■ To identify and promote synergies amongst our Port 
communities through regular port group meetings including 
the Port Advisory Body, the Environmental Working 
Group, the Port Safety Committee and the Port Security 
Committee.

■ Over the next 12 months, the Authority will redevelop the 
external website to improve its appearance, functionality and 
usability. The external website is an important communication 
tool which plays a major role in promoting and informing 
stakeholders, and also facilitates doing business with ease 
for our customers.

EMPLOYMENT AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
■ During 2004/2005, the Authority intends to finalise and 

have certified Enterprise Agreements for all employees.
■ The Authority will develop a remuneration structure reflective 

of the responsibility, performance and achievement of 
individuals during 2005.

■ In the next 12 months, the Authority will commence a 
review of all existing position descriptions to ensure they 
adequately reflect position requirements, responsibilities 
and skills.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY
To enable us to meet our strategic organisational objectives, 

several OH&S initiatives are underway to improve strategic 
direction and communication. One of these is the formation of 
a new OH&S steering group and the development of a three 
year OH&S improvement plan.

To assist employees to understand their responsibilities 
as they pertain to OH&S and to accept greater ownership of 
OH&S practices in the workplace, an ‘OH&S for Managers 
and Supervisors’ training course will be offered in late 2004 
and early 2005.

Refresher courses for all Workplace Health and Safety 
Representatives will also be made available in 2004/2005.

This overall approach combined with our current initiatives 
will assist greatly in involving our employees in decision making 
for improvements. A continuing goal is to encourage employee 
participation in all OH&S activities.

Number of lost time injuries incidents 1

Number of other injury incidents 3

Number of contractor incidents reported 0

Number of near miss/dangerous occurrences 1

Total number of incidents reported 5

Number of claims made 2002/2003 9

Number of claims made 2003/2004 2

Number of WorkCover claims accepted 2

Claims incurring lost time and medical expense 1

Medical expense only claim 1
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TOWNSVILLE PORT AUTHORITY

annual financial report
for the financial year ended 30 june 2004

PURPOSE AND SCOPE
The Townsville Port Authority is a Statutory Government Owned Corporation, constituted on 1 July 1995 under the 

provisions of the Government Owned Corporations Act 1993 (GOC Act). Under the terms of Section 127 of the 

GOC Act, the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1977 applies to the Authority as if it were a Statutory Body.

These Statements have been prepared - 

(i) to satisfy the provisions of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1977 and other prescribed require-

ments; and

(ii) to communicate information concerning the Authority’s financial performance for the year and its financial position 

at year end to a variety of information users including - 

• its shareholding Ministers, the Honourable the Minister for Transport and Minister for Main Roads of Queensland 

and the Honourable the Treasurer of Queensland;

• users and potential users of the Port of Townsville; 

• the community in general; and

• other interested parties.

The statements are general purpose in nature and provide a full presentation of all of the financial activities of the 

Authority.
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TOWNSVILLE PORT AUTHORITY NOTE 2004 ($) 2003 ($)

statement of financial performance 
for the financial year ended 30 june 2004

REVENUES FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Revenue from Operating Activities
Service Revenue 2 26,896,906 25,453,413

Revenue from Non-Operating Activities
Interest received  232,035 189,056

Other Revenue 2 52,210 93,512

Total Revenue from Ordinary Activities  27,181,151 25,735,981

EXPENSES FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES EXCLUDING BORROWING COSTS

Employee Benefits Expense  4,043,076 4,032,299

Depreciation Expense  7,040,174 6,862,306

Other Expenses 2 12,310,112 13,853,617

Total Expenses from Ordinary Activities Excluding Borrowing Costs  23,393,362 24,748,222

Borrowing Costs Expense  1,136,506 1,224,038

PROFIT / (LOSS) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE 
INCOME TAX EXPENSE / (INCOME TAX REVENUE)  2,651,283 (236,279)

Income Tax Revenue (Income Tax Expense) relating to Ordinary Activities 4 (1,419,439) (584,796)

PROFIT / (LOSS) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES AFTER 
INCOME TAX EXPENSE / (INCOME TAX REVENUE) 3 1,231,844 (821,075)

NET PROFIT / (LOSS)  1,231,844 (821,075)

Increase / (Decrease) in Asset Revaluation Reserve 5 6,310,394 (900,000)

Total Revenues, Expenses and Valuation Adjustments 
Recognised Directly in Equity  6,310,394 (900,000)

TOTAL CHANGES IN EQUITY OTHER THAN THOSE 
RESULTING FROM TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS AS OWNERS 6 $7,542,238 ($1,721,075)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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TOWNSVILLE PORT AUTHORITY NOTE 2004 ($) 2003 ($)

statement of financial position 
as at 30 june 2004

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash Assets  7 6,872,375 2,844,500

Receivables  8 3,387,334 2,939,718

Current Tax Asset  - 24,562

Other    9 151,573 132,832

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  10,411,282 5,941,612

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, Plant and Equipment 10 122,533,930 121,111,259

Deferred Tax Assets  453,082 407,792

Other    9 4,817 9,950

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  122,991,829 121,529,001

TOTAL ASSETS  $133,403,111 $127,470,613

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Payables   11 2,904,565 3,387,680

Interest-bearing Liabilities 12 2,065,684 1,926,219

Current Tax Liabilities  779,902 -

Provisions   13 1,502,006 384,252

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  7,252,157 5,698,151

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Payables   14 - 22,000

Interest-bearing Liabilities 12 15,665,602 17,731,659

Deferred Tax Liabilities  1,726,089 1,646,580

Provisions   13 469,943 454,891

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  17,861,634 19,855,130

TOTAL LIABILITIES  $25,113,791 $25,553,281

NET ASSETS  $108,289,320 $101,917,332

EQUITY

Contributed Equity 15 98,935,028 98,935,028

(Accumulated Losses) 3 (11,617,842) (11,760,095)

Reserves   5 20,972,134 14,742,399

TOTAL EQUITY  $108,289,320 $101,917,332

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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TOWNSVILLE PORT AUTHORITY NOTE 2004 ($) 2003 ($)

statement of cash flows
for the financial year ended 30 june 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers  26,458,372 24,830,951

Payments to suppliers and employees  (16,901,134) (17,500,326)

GST collected from sales and services provided  2,630,505 2,620,293

GST paid in respect of acquisitions  (1,225,490) (1,632,170)

GST paid to Australian Taxation Office  (1,414,586) (852,465)

Interest received  232,035 189,056

Income Tax Equivalents Paid  (580,757) (457,211)

Net cash inflow from operating activities B $9,198,945 $7,198,128

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for property, plant and equipment  (2,144,808) (6,178,338)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  36,836 216,909

Net cash outflow from investing activities  ($2,107,972) ($5,961,429)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of borrowings  (1,926,592) (1,839,059)

Interest paid   (1,136,506) (1,224,038)

Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities  ($3,063,098) ($3,063,097)

Net (Decrease) / Increase in cash held  4,027,875 -1,826,398

Cash at beginning of the financial year  2,844,500 4,670,898

Cash at end of financial year A $6,872,375 $2,844,500
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TOWNSVILLE PORT AUTHORITY 

notes to the statement of cash flows 
for the financial year ended 30 june 2004

A. Reconciliation of Cash

For the purposes of this statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and 

at bank and investments, in money market instruments, readily convertible to cash 

at the investor’s option.

Cash at the end of the year is shown in the Statement of Financial Position as:

Cash on Hand  1,400 1,200

Cash at Bank   279,340 877,840

Term Deposits  6,591,635 1,965,460

      $6,872,375 $2,844,500

B. Reconciliation of Profit (Loss) from Ordinary Activities After Income Tax 
Equivalents Expense to Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities

Operating (Loss) / Profit after Income Tax Equivalents Expense 

and Abnormal Items  1,231,843 (821,073)

Depreciation   7,040,174 6,862,306

Interest Expense  1,136,506 1,224,038

Profit on Disposal of Non-Current Assets  (21,128) -

Loss on Disposal of Non-Current Assets  - 38,782

Income Tax Equivalents Expense  1,419,439 584,796

Changes in Assets and Liabilities

 (Increase) Decrease in Trade Debtors  (447,616) 12,918

 (Increase) Decrease in Utility Deposits  5,133 1,469

 (Increase) Decrease in Prepayments  (18,740) (47,160)

 Increase (Decrease) in Operating Trade Creditors  (700,860) 5,305

 Increase (Decrease) in Operating Retention  20,522 59,854

 Increase (Decrease) in Other Operating Creditors  151,873 43,859

 Increase (Decrease) in Provisions  (37,444) (309,755)

 Increase (Decrease) in Provision for Taxation - (Tax Paid in Year)  (580,757) (457,211)

Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities  $9,198,945 $7,198,128

C. Financing Facilities

The Authority has available a bank overdraft limit of $100,000. At 30 June 2004 no 

amount was drawn on this overdraft. Loan facilities as shown in note 12 to the 

accounts are provided by the Queensland Treasury Corporation. New borrowings are 

subject to the approved Loan Programme with the sanction of the Treasurer of Queensland.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND EXPLANATION OF ITEMS SHOWN IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) Basis of Preparation of the Accounts
This financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with the Australian 

Accounting Standards, and the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1977. The financial report has been prepared 

on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs and does not take into account changing money values or, 

except where stated, current valuations of non-current assets. The accounting policies have been consistently 

applied unless otherwise stated.

Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the prior year. Where 

appropriate, comparative figures have been amended to accord with current presentation and disclosure made of 

material changes to comparatives.

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the Port Authority in the preparation of 

the financial report.

(b) Corporate Status
The Townsville Port Authority is a Statutory Government Owned Corporation, constituted on 1 July 1995 under the 

provisions of the Government Owned Corporations Act 1993 (GOC Act). Under the terms of Section 127 of the 

GOC Act, the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1977 applies to the Authority as if it were a Statutory Body.

(c) Taxation
As a Government owned corporation, the entity is not subject to Commonwealth income tax but as from 1 July 2001 

the Authority has been required to pay tax equivalents under the National Tax Equivalents Regime. The Authority, in 

accordance with Accounting Standard AAS 3 “Accounting for Income Tax” is required to adopt tax effect accounting.

Future income tax benefits are not brought to account unless realisation of the asset is assured beyond 

reasonable doubt. Future income tax benefits in relation to tax losses are not brought to account unless there 

is virtual certainty of realisation of the benefit. The amounts of benefits brought to account or which may be 

realised in the future is based on the assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation equivalents 

legislation, and the anticipation that the economic entity will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable 

the benefit to be realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by law.

(d) Cash Investments
All monies invested at 24 hour call and other short term deposits are recorded as cash for financial statement 

purposes due to the liquidity of these assets. The carrying amount approximates fair value because of their short 

term to maturity.

(e) Property Plant and Equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair values less, where applicable, any 

accumulated depreciation.

Acquisition

The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of the assets 

provided as consideration at the date of acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable to the acquisition.
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TOWNSVILLE PORT AUTHORITY 

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND EXPLANATION OF ITEMS SHOWN IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 (continued)

Actual cost is used for the initial recording of all acquisitions of assets controlled and administered by the Authority. 

Assets acquired at no cost or for nominal considerations are recognised at their fair value at date of acquisition.

Cost is determined as the value given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including all other 

costs incurred in getting the asset ready for use, including architects’ fees and engineering design fees.

Where assets are constructed by the Authority, the cost at which they are recorded includes an appropriate share 

of fixed and variable overheads. No borrowing costs are included.

Property, plant and equipment items with a cost or value on excess of $500 and a useful life of more than one 

year are recognised as an asset. All other items of property, plant and equipment are expensed on acquisition.

Assets carried at fair value

Channels and swing basins, freehold land, wharves, buildings, land improvements, small boat harbours and 

facilities, breakwaters and access roads are measured on the fair value basis, being the amount for which an asset 

could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. It is the policy of the 

Authority to have assets carried at fair value independently valued and useful lives reassessed every five years, 

with annual appraisals being made by directors. An independent valuation and reassessment of the useful lives of 

land, buildings and infrastructure assets was last performed as at 1st January 2000 by Edward Rushton Australia 

Pty Ltd. For the period ended 30 June 2003, revaluation of assets was not performed with the exception of one 

asset acquired during that period so that this asset could be recorded at fair value. For the reporting period ended 

30 June 2004 the carrying amounts of non-current assets were indexed. The revaluation indices were provided 

by Rushton (Qld) Pty. Ltd. The revaluation of freehold land and buildings has not taken account of the potential 

capital gains tax on assets acquired after the introduction of capital gains tax.

Assets carried at cost

Plant and equipment, motor vehicles, beacons and capital works in progress are measured on the cost basis. 

Plant and equipment and beacons were carried at a revalued amount in the previous reporting period. The 

Authority has elected to revert to the cost basis for measuring these assets. The carrying amount of these assets 

as at 1 July 2001 was deemed to be their cost. The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually 

by directors to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount 

is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows which will be received from the assets employment and 

subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have been discounted to their present values in determining 

recoverable amounts. The cost of fixed assets constructed within the Authority includes the cost of materials, 

direct labour, borrowing costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings and capitalised lease assets, but excluding freehold land, 

is depreciated on a straight line basis over their useful lives to the Authority commencing from the time the asset is held 

ready for use. For depreciation purposes, complex assets have been broken down into major components. Properties 

held for investment purposes are not subject to depreciation. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter 

of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND EXPLANATION OF ITEMS SHOWN IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 (continued)

Depreciation Rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

 Channels, Swing Basins, and Wharves 2.5%

 Plant, Equipment 5.0% - 33.3%

 Land Improvements & Small Boat Harbours 2.5% - 10.0%

 Buildings 5.0% - 10.0%

 Breakwaters 2.0%

 Motor Vehicles 25.0%

 Access Roads 5.0%

 Beacons 10.0%

The gain or loss on disposal of all fixed assets is determined as the difference between the carrying amount of the 

asset at the time of disposal and the proceeds of disposal, and is included in profit (loss) from ordinary activities 

of the Authority in the year of disposal.

(f) Leases
Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are 

charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

(g) Employees’ Provisions
Provision is made for the Authority’s liability for employee entitlements arising from services rendered by 

employees to balance date. Employee entitlements expected to be settled within one year together with 

entitlements arising from wages and salaries, and annual leave which will be settled after one year, have been 

measured at their nominal amount. Other employee entitlements payable later than one year have been measured 

at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those entitlements, discounted by an 

average Commonwealth Bond rate which matches the term of the related liabilities.

The amount calculated for Long Service Leave entitlements in accordance with AASB1028 is $507,796 (2003 

was $489,916). Payroll Tax, Workers Compensation and Superannuation are included in the total.

The current portion of long service leave has been calculated as a proportion of all employees with greater than seven 

years service. This proportion is based upon long service leave actually taken by employees over a three year period.

Employees of the Authority are members of QSuper. Employer contributions to QSuper made by the Authority are 

charged as expenses as the contributions are paid or become payable.

For employees in QSuper, the Treasurer of Queensland, based on advice received from the State Actuary, 

determines employer contributions for superannuation expenses.

No liability is recognised for accruing superannuation benefits in these financial statements, the liability being held 

on a whole-of-Government basis and reported in the whole of Government financial report prepared pursuant to 

AAS 31 - Financial Reporting by Governments.

There were sixty-eight [68] full-time employees as at 30 June 2004 (2003 was seventy-one [71] ).
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TOWNSVILLE PORT AUTHORITY 

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND EXPLANATION OF ITEMS SHOWN IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 (continued)

(h) Computer Software and Hardware
Computer hardware is currently depreciated over its expected useful economic life of three years. Associated 

communications costs such as cabling and leased lines for the Authority’s wide area network are fully expensed in 

the year the costs are incurred.

(i) Inventories
All stores have been expensed and accounted for in the Statement of Financial Performance.

(j) Receivables
Revenue is recognised when the Invoice is raised and is payable in 30 days. Collections are reviewed monthly. 

The carrying amount approximates fair value.

(k) Payables
Expenditure is recognised when the goods/services are received. Usual payment is 30 days. The carrying amount 

approximates fair value.

(l) Borrowing Costs
All borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. No borrowing costs 

are capitalised. Borrowing costs include interest on borrowings.

(m) Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST 

incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as 

part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the 

statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST.

(n) Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
The Financial Reporting Council has determined that all entities preparing general purpose financial statements 

will apply the Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for reporting periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2005.

The adoption of Australian equivalents to IFRS will be first reflected in the financial statements for the year ending 

30 June 2006

Entities complying with Australian equivalents to IFRS for the first time will be required to restate their comparative 

financial statements to amounts reflecting the application of IFRS to that comparative period. Most adjustments 

required on transition to IFRS will be made, retrospectively, against opening retained earnings as at 1 July 2004.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND EXPLANATION OF ITEMS SHOWN IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 (continued)

Townsville Port Authority has engaged external consultants to assist in the implementation of the new reporting 

requirements. All Pending Australian Equivalents to IFRS are being progressively reviewed for possible 

implications on policies, procedures, systems and financial impacts arising from such changes.

The dollar values of any changes cannot be reliably estimated at the date of this report.

Policy decisions made at whole-of-Government level in relation to the limiting of options in the Australian 

Equivalent to IFRS may have additional impacts on financial reports prepared using these Standards.

Major changes identified to date that will be required to Townsville Port Authority’s existing accounting policies 

include the following (references to new AASB standards below are to the Australian equivalents to IFRS issued 

in July 2004):

 (i) Income Tax
Under the new AASB 112 Income Taxes, deferred tax balances are determined using the balance sheet 

method which calculates temporary differences based on the carrying amounts of an entity’s assets and 

liabilities in the statement of financial position and their associated tax bases. In addition current and deferred 

taxes attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in equity. This will result 

in a change to the current accounting policy under which deferred tax balances are determined using the 

income statement method and items are only tax effected if they are included in the determination of pre-tax 

accounting profit or loss and/or taxable income or loss, and current and deferred taxes cannot be recognised 

directly in equity.

 (ii) Investment Properties
Under the new AASB 140 Investment Property, if investment properties are measured at fair value net of 

applicable tax, gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in net profit or loss for the 

period in which they arise. This will result in a change to the current accounting policy under which investment 

properties are revalued to fair value and changes in fair value are recognised in the asset revaluation reserve.

The above should not be regarded as a complete list of changes in accounting policies that will result from the 

transition to Australian equivalents to IFRS as not all standards have been analysed as yet, and some decisions 

have not yet been made where choices of accounting policies are available. For these reasons it is not yet 

possible to quantify the impact of the transition to Australian equivalents to IFRS on the Townsville Port Authority’s 

financial position and reported results.
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TOWNSVILLE PORT AUTHORITY 2004 ($) 2003 ($) 2004 ($) 2003 ($)

2. PROFIT (LOSS) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE (INCOME TAX REVENUE) 
 INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING SPECIFIC REVENUES AND EXPENSES.

  Service Revenue
  Harbour Dues  18,478,774 17,257,322

  Tonnage Rates  3,972,633 3,643,430

  Rentals  2,569,949 2,124,558

  Pilotage Revenue  562,218 988,454

  Charges for Services

Water Sales 266,045 274,774

Services to Shipping 271,662 265,255

Boat Harbour Ross River 245,286 298,929

Boat Harbour Ross Creek 169,459 168,785

Electricity Sales 109,625 123,347

Picnic Bay Jetty 21,552 62,837

Breakwater Marina - Mooring Fees 52,997 71,566

Miscellaneous Plant 20,875 25,757

Breakwater Marina - Fuel Licence 35,146 19,700

Road Contribution Charge 79,329 86,951

Port Security 27,788 25,653

Main Harbour Fuel Licence Fee 108 1,080

Port Services 7,691 14,900

Sewage Treatment Plant 5,769 115 1,313,332 1,439,649

      $26,896,906 $25,453,413

  Other Revenue
Revenue from sale of Plant & Equipment 36,836 -

Carrying Value of Plant & Equipment 

Disposed of 15,708 -

Gain on Sale of Plant & Equipment   21,128 -

Miscellaneous Revenue   31,082 93,512

      $52,210 $93,512

  Other Expenses
Supplies & Services   11,907,975 12,951,278

Competitive Neutrality Fee   143,535 142,517

Land Tax   177,493 163,477

Audit Fees   78,680 70,290

Bad Debt Written Off   2,429 37,273

Lease Surrender Payment   - 450,000

Carrying Value of Plant & Equipment 

Disposed of - 255,691

Revenue from sale of Plant & Equipment - 216,909

Loss on Sale of Plant & Equipment   - 38,782

      $12,310,112 $13,853,617
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   2004 ($) 2003 ($)

3. RETAINED PROFITS (ACCUMULATED LOSSES)
Retained profits (accumulated losses) at the beginning of the year  (11,760,095) (10,971,220)

Net Profit (Loss) for the period  1,231,844 (821,075)

Dividend provided for  (1,170,250) -

Transfers to and from Reserves

 Maintenance Reserve Picnic Bay Jetty Maintenance Expenses  51,580 31,139

 Maintenance Reserve Picnic Bay Jetty Passenger Levy Receipts  (21,552) (62,837)

 Berth 11 Reserve Transfer from retained Profits / Depreciation Expense  50,631 63,898

 Retained profits (accumulated losses) at the reporting date  ($11,617,842) ($11,760,095)

4. INCOME TAX EQUIVALENTS
 (i) Prima facie tax equivalents (benefit) / payable on operating profit (loss) from ordinary activities is reconciled to 

  the income tax provided in the accounts as follows:

 Prima facie tax equivalents (benefit) / payable on operating profit (loss) 

 from ordinary activities before income tax at 30%.  795,385 (70,883)

 Tax effect of permanent differences:-

 Non-deductible entertainment  4,607 7,867

 Non-deductible legal expenses  - 7,875

 Non-deductible consultancy fees  - 27,658

 Accounting depreciation on land and buildings  127,802 119,187

 Accounting depreciation on non-depreciable items  828,596 612,697

 Special building write-off  (115,543) (112,540)

 Sundry permanent differences  (218,669) (19,259)

 Accounting Profit / Loss on non-depreciable items  - 12,194

 Adjustment to prior year tax expense  (2,739) -

      624,054 655,679

 Income Tax Equivalents Expense  $1,419,439 $584,796

 (ii) Income Tax expense comprises:

 Provision for deferred income tax  81,649 101,600

 Future income tax benefit  (45,290) 65,949

 Provision for income tax  1,385,819 417,247

 Adjustment to prior year tax expense  (2,739) -

      $1,419,439 $584,796
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TOWNSVILLE PORT AUTHORITY   2004 ($) 2003 ($)

5. RESERVES
 Maintenance Reserve Picnic Bay Jetty  307,475 337,503

 Asset Revaluation Reserve  20,623,167 14,312,773

 Berth 11 Reserve  41,492 92,123

      $20,972,134 $14,742,399

Movements During The Year:

Maintenance Reserve Picnic Bay Jetty -

  Amount at beginning of the financial year  337,503 305,805

   Passenger Levy Receipts transferred from Retained Profits  21,552 62,837

   Maintenance Expenses transferred to Retained Profits  (51,580) (31,139)

  Amount at the reporting date  307,475 337,503

Asset Revaluation Reserve -

  Amount at beginning of the financial year  14,312,773 15,212,773

   Net Asset Revaluation Increment (Decrement)  6,310,394 (900,000)

  Amount at the reporting date  20,623,167 14,312,773

Berth 11 Reserve -

  Amount at beginning of the financial year  92,123 156,021

   Transfer from Retained Profits  (50,631) (63,898)

  Amount at the reporting date  41,492 92,123

6. EQUITY
 Total equity at the beginning of the financial year  101,917,332 103,638,407

 Total changes in equity recognised in the statement of financial performance 7,542,238 (1,721,075)

 Total equity at the reporting date  $109,459,570 $101,917,332

7. CASH ASSETS
 Cash on Hand  1,400 1,200

 Cash at Bank  279,340 877,840

 Term Deposits  6,591,635 1,965,460

      $6,872,375 $2,844,500
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   2004 ($) 2003 ($)

8. RECEIVABLES (CURRENT)
 Trade Debtors  3,389,434 2,944,962

 Less Provision for Doubtful Debts**  (2,100) (5,244)

      $3,387,334 $2,939,718

**There were no bad debts written off against the provision.

9. OTHER ASSETS
Current

 Prepayments  138,320 119,579

 Utility Deposits  13,253 13,253

      $151,573 $132,832

Non-Current

 Utility Deposits  4,817 9,950

      $4,817 $9,950
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TOWNSVILLE PORT AUTHORITY   2004 ($) 2003 ($)

10. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Gross

$

Accumulated

Depreciation

$

Carrying

Amount

$

Carrying

Amount

$

Channels and Swing Basins

At Directors’ Valuation - January 2004 67,153,038 39,960,585 27,192,453 28,546,061

Land

At Directors’ Valuation - January 2004 28,294,551 - 28,294,551 26,443,506

Additions at Cost 909,794 - 909,794 -

 Total Land 29,204,345 - 29,204,345 26,443,506

Wharves

At Directors’ Valuation - January 2004 154,138,091 130,778,665 23,359,426 22,268,544

Additions - - - 1,078,121

 Total Wharves 154,138,091 130,778,665 23,359,426 23,346,665

Plant and Equipment

At Cost 29,038,148 18,956,648 10,081,500 11,884,883

Buildings

At Directors’ Valuation - January 2004 22,324,852 11,055,980 11,268,872 8,663,308

Additions 58,231 1,516 56,715 1,311,055

 Total Buildings 22,383,083 11,057,496 11,325,587 9,974,363

Improvements (Land)

At Directors’ Valuation - January 2004 14,186,037 4,605,821 9,580,216 8,277,454

Additions 125,585 5,924 119,661 1,318,256

 Total Improvements (Land) 14,311,622 4,611,745 9,699,877 9,595,710

Small Boat Harbours

At Directors’ Valuation - January 2004 6,494,567 3,903,504 2,591,063 2,608,149

Additions at Cost 69,484 3,194 66,290 81,924

 Total Small Boat Harbours 6,564,051 3,906,698 2,657,353 2,690,073

Breakwaters

At Directors’ Valuation - January 2004 7,848,402 5,552,547 2,295,855 2,182,310

Access Roads

At Directors’ Valuation - January 2004 6,584,822 5,021,152 1,563,670 1,719,836

Motor Vehicles at Cost 588,578 444,318 144,260 263,495

Beacons at Cost 377,000 377,000 - 4

Capital Works in Progress* at cost 5,009,604 - 5,009,604 4,464,353

$343,200,784 $220,666,854 $122,533,930 $121,111,259
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   

10. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (continued)
       2004 2003
       $ $
*Capital Works in Progress

 Harbour Works  2,154,073 2,037,694

 Equipment  756,451 471,944

 Eastern Port Development  2,099,080 1,954,715

      $5,009,604 $4,464,353

Reconciliation of the Carrying Amounts by Class (Continued) 2004 2004
       Cost Fair Value
       $ $

Channels and Swing Basins

 Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year at Fair Value 28,546,061

  additions -

  disposals -

  net revaluation increment / (decrement) 1,404,322

  recoverable amount write-downs (1,846,170)

  depreciation expense (911,760)

 Carrying amount at the end of the financial year at Fair Value 27,192,453

Land

 Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year at Fair Value 26,443,506

  additions 909,794

  disposals -

  net revaluation increment / (decrement) 1,851,045

  depreciation expense -

 Carrying amount at the end of the financial year at Fair Value 29,204,345

Wharves

 Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year at Fair Value 23,346,665

  additions -

  disposals -

  transfers between asset classes 353,013

  net revaluation increment / (decrement) 4,538,855

  recoverable amount write-downs (2,753,021)

  depreciation expense (2,126,086)

 Carrying amount at the end of the financial year at Fair Value 23,359,426

Plant & Equipment

 Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year at Cost 11,884,883

  additions 337,214

  disposals (6,271)

  depreciation expense (2,134,326)

 Carrying amount at the end of the financial year at Cost 10,081,500
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TOWNSVILLE PORT AUTHORITY 

10. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (continued)
Reconciliation of the Carrying Amounts by Class (Continued) 2004 2004
       Cost Fair Value
       $ $

Buildings

 Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year at Fair Value 9,974,363

  additions 58,232

  disposals -

  net revaluation increment / (decrement) 1,935,469

  depreciation expense (642,477)

 Carrying amount at the end of the financial year at Fair Value 11,325,587

Improvements (Land)

 Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year at Fair Value 9,595,710

  additions 125,585

  disposals -

  net revaluation increment / (decrement) 492,459

  depreciation expense (513,877)

 Carrying amount at the end of the financial year at Fair Value 9,699,877

Small Boat Harbours and Facilities

 Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year at Fair Value 2,690,073

  additions 69,484

  disposals -

  transfers between asset classes (353,013)

  net revaluation increment / (decrement) 407,741

  depreciation expense (156,932)

 Carrying amount at the end of the financial year at Fair Value 2,657,353

Breakwaters

 Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year at Fair Value 2,182,310

  additions -

  disposals -

  net revaluation increment / (decrement) 319,898

  recoverable amount write-down (102,048)

  depreciation expense (104,305)

 Carrying amount at the end of the financial year at Fair Value 2,295,855
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   

10. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (continued)
Reconciliation of the Carrying Amounts by Class (Continued) 2004 2004
       Cost Fair Value
       $ $

Access Roads

 Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year at Fair Value 1,719,836

  additions -

  disposals -

  net revaluation increment / (decrement) 157,060

  depreciation expense (313,226)

 Carrying amount at the end of the financial year at Fair Value 1,563,670

Motor Vehicles

 Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year at Cost 263,495

  additions 27,383

  disposals (9,437)

  net revaluation increment / (decrement) -

  depreciation expense (137,181)

 Carrying amount at the end of the financial year at Cost 144,260

Beacons

 Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year at Cost 4

  additions -

  disposals -

  net revaluation increment / (decrement) -

  depreciation expense (4)

 Carrying amount at the end of the financial year at Cost -

*Capital Works in Progress

 Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year at Cost 4,464,354

  additions 2,072,942

  disposals (1,527,692)

  net revaluation increment / (decrement) -

  depreciation expense -

 Carrying amount at the end of the financial year at Cost 5,009,604
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TOWNSVILLE PORT AUTHORITY   2004 ($) 2003 ($)

11. PAYABLES (CURRENT)
Trade Creditors  1,996,063 2,598,666

Revenue in Advance  695,303 500,596

Retention    165,230 197,118

Accrued Wages  27,529 50,604

Pilotage Clearing Account  - 497

Trust Fund Deposits  20,440 40,199

      $2,904,565 $3,387,680

12. INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES
Current    2,065,684 1,926,219

Non-Current   15,665,602 17,731,659

      $17,731,286 $19,657,878

All borrowings are with Queensland Treasury Corporation. The Queensland Treasury 

Corporation recorded a market value adjustment of ($46,510), (2003 was $798,453) 

principally as a result of past movements in the market value of liabilities in the Debt 

Pools giving a market debt outstanding of $17,684,776 (2003 was $20,456,331).

13. PROVISIONS
Current

Employees’ Long Service Leave  37,853 35,025

Employees’ Annual Leave  272,705 291,477

Dividend    1,170,250 -

Fringe Benefits Tax  21,198 19,626

Competitive Neutrality Fee  - 38,124

      $1,502,006 $384,252

Non-Current

Employees’ Long Service Leave  $469,943 $454,891

14. PAYABLES (NON-CURRENT)
Rent in Advance  - $22,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   2004 ($) 2003 ($)

15. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Authorised capital - 500,000,000 ordinary shares of $1 each  $500,000,000 $500,000,000

Issued capital

Amount at beginning of the financial year - 98,935,028 ordinary shares of 

$1 each fully paid  98,935,028 98,935,028

Amount at the reporting date - 98,935,028 ordinary shares of $1 each fully paid  $98,935,028 $98,935,028

16. DEVELOPMENT BUREAU & COMMUNITY PROJECTS
The Authority supported the following Development Bureau and community projects:-

Townsville Enterprise Incorporated  62,000 62,000

Townsville City Council - Contribution to the Strand sand replenishment  50,000 50,000

Townsville Maritime Museum  69,565 56,934

Australian Red Cross  7,000 -

The Salvation Army Red Shield Appeal  5,000 4,546

James Cook University of North Queensland Prizes  1,350 1,750

      $194,915 $175,230

17. CONSULTANCY EXPENDITURE
Professional/Technical  320,035 746,217

Management   40,423 12,124

Human Resource Management  13,837 22,382

Finance/Accounting  38,622 27,249

Information Technology  5,707 4,534

      $418,624 $812,506
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TOWNSVILLE PORT AUTHORITY   2004 ($) 2003 ($)

18. COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital Expenditure Commitments (GST inclusive)

Upgrade to Port Security Infrastructure  1,184,416 -

Other Plant & Equipment  54,605 $37,275

      $1,239,021 $37,275

(b) Operating Commitments (GST inclusive)

Repairs to Berth 1 Piles  $2,464,684 -

Depending on works performance the above commitments are payable within one year.

(c) Operating leases

There were no operating leases in place at 30 June 2004 (2003 was nil)

19. CONTINGENT ASSETS/LIABILITIES
There were no known contingent assets/liabilities of a significant nature 

at 30 June 2004.

20. SEGMENT REPORTING
The Authority operates predominantly in one industry being that of seaport 

management and control. It operates predominantly in one geographic 

segment being Townsville.

21. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Amounts received or due and receivable by the auditors for 
auditing the accounts.  $42,300 $31,850
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS    

22. DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(i) Interest Rate Risk

The Authority’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted 

average interest rate for classes of financial assets and financial liabilities 

is set out below.

Financial Instrument Fixed Rate Maturing In Non Interest Bearing Carrying Amount as per
Balance Sheet

Weighted 
Average 

Book Rate
0-1 Years 1-5 Years Over 5 Years

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

Financial Assets

 Cash on Hand - - - - - - 1,400 1,200 1,400 1,200 - -

 Cash at Bank 279,340 877,840 - - - - - - 279,340 877,840 4.06% 3.75%

 Short Term Deposits 6,591,634 1,965,460 - - - - - - 6,591,634 1,965,460 5.44% 5.13%

 Dept of Defence Trust Account - - - - - - - - - - - -

 Receivables - See note 1(j) - - - - - - 3,420,303 2,939,718 3,420,303 2,939,718 - -

Financial Liabilities

 Payables - See Note 1(k) - - - - - - 2,821,695 3,409,679 2,821,695 3,409,679 - -

 QTC Borrowings 2,055,781 1,926,219 6,116,539 8,750,579 17,731,286 19,657,878 5.88% 5.92%

9,558,966 8,981,080 - -

In the above Financial Instruments, book value equates to net fair value, with the exception of QTC Borrowings. The 

market rate of QTC Borrowings as at 30th June 2004 was $17,684,776 (at 30th June 2003 was $20,456,331).

(ii) Credit Risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance date to recog-

nised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for doubtful debts, as disclosed in the balance 

sheet and notes to the financial statements.

(iii) Net Fair Values

The net fair value of cash and cash equivalents and non-interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities of the 

Authority approximates their carrying value. See note 1(d)
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TOWNSVILLE PORT AUTHORITY    

23. SPECIFIED DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES REMUNERATION
remuneration of specified directors year director

fees
committee

fees
employer

super-
annuation

total
remuneration

R.G. McLean (Chairman) 2003/04

2002/03

22,000

22,000

1,200

1,600

2,088

2,124

25,288

25,724

B.K. Keating (Deputy Chair) 2003/04

2002/03

10,000

10,000

1,900

2,200

1,071

1,098

12,971

13,298

T.P. Baxter 2003/04

2002/03

10,000

10,000

1,750

1,500

1,057

1,035

12,807

12,535

A.J. Mooney 2003/04

2002/03

10,000

10,000

-

-

900

900

10,900

10,900

T.G. Parker 2003/04

2002/03

10,000

10,000

900

1,200

981

1,008

11,881

12,208

G. Pennisi 2003/04

2002/03

10,000

10,000

900

1,200

981

1,008

11,881

12,208

S.B. Graw 2003/04

2002/03

10,000

10,000

1,000

1,000

990

990

11,990

11,990

J.M. Gleeson 2003/04

2002/03

10,000

10,000

500

1,000

945

990

11,445

11,990

insurance premiums to indemnify 

liabilities while acting as a director

2003/04

2002/03

25,275

25,275

Total Remuneration:

Specified Directors

2003/04

2002/03

92,000

92,000

8,150

9,700

9,013

9,153

134,438

136,128

remuneration of specified executives year base salary employer

super-

annuation

other benefits

(incl vehicle)

total

remuneration

Chief Executive Officer 2003/04

2002/03

157,708

149,500

19,713

18,687

17,591

17,715

195,012

185,902

Manager - Major Projects - 

resigned 25 September 2003

2003/04

2002/03

32,791

100,000

3,283

16,173

4,491

16,377

40,565

132,550

Manager - Engineering 2003/04

2002/03

102,723

97,850

9,245

8,806

20,759

20,817

132,727

127,473

Manager - Corporate Governance - 

appointed 16 September 2003

2003/04 70,673 5,430 8,549 84,652

Manager - Finance 2003/04 80,557 10,270 13,475 104,302

Manager - Marine Services 2003/04 76,442 9,746 11,841 98,029

Manager - Planning & Environment - 

appointed 10 October 2003

2003/04 60,933 5,484 10,295 76,712

Total Remuneration: Specified Executives 2003/04

2002/03

581,827

347,350

63,171

43,666

87,001

54,909

731,999

445,925

not all specified executive positions disclosed in 2003/2004 were required to be disclosed in 2002/2003

aggregate at-risk performance 

incentive remuneration

Aggregate at-risk performance 

incentive remuneration paid

Number of employees to whom a 

performance payment is paid or payable

2003/04

2002/03

-

-

-

-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   

24. RELATED PARTY INFORMATION
From time to time Directors and Director related entities have commercial dealings with the Authority. These transac-

tions are conducted on arms length terms and conditions. Directors declare their interest on commercial dealings at 

Board meetings.

25. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER BALANCE DATE
No events were noted in the previous years Annual Financial Report as occurring after balance date.
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TOWNSVILLE PORT AUTHORITY

independent audit report
To the Board of the Townsville Port Authority

Scope

The Financial Report

The financial report of Townsville port Authority consists of the statement of financial performance, statement of finan-

cial position, statement of cash flows, notes to and forming part of the financial statements and certificates given by 

the board and officer responsible for the financial administration of Townsville Port Authority, for the year ended 30 

June 2004.

The Board’s Responsibility

The board is responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial report, the maintenance of 

adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error and for the 

accounting polices and accounting estimate inherent in the financial report.

Audit Approach

As required by law, an independent audit was conducted in accordance with QAO Auditing Standards to enable me 

to provide an independent opinion whether in all material respects the financial report is presented fairly, in accor-

dance with the prescribed requirements, including any mandatory financial reporting requirements as approved by the 

Treasurer for application in Queensland.

Audit procedures included – 

• examining information on a test/sample basis to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 

in the financial report;

• assessing the appropriateness of the accounting polices and disclosures used and the reasonableness of 

significant accounting estimates made by the Board;

• obtaining written confirmation regarding the material representations made in conjunction with the audit; and

• reviewing the overall presentation of information in the financial report.

Independence 

The financial Administration and Audit Act 1997 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and QAO autho-

rised auditors.

The Auditor-General is the auditor of all public sector entitles and can only be removed by Parliament.

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not subject to direction by any 

person about the way in which powers are to be exercised.

The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and property and can 

report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General’s opinion are significant.
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REPORT INFORMATION 
ABOUT OUR REPORT
Our financial and business-related activities for the fiscal year 

from 1 July 2003 to 30 June 2004 form the basis of this report. 
This report also complies with statutory requirements.

We aim to communicate a clear and accurate account of the 
Port’s performance during this period and touch on how we see 
the Port progressing in the coming year.

This report is geared to a range of different audiences, with our 
primary target group being our stakeholders, customers, employees 
and Government and industry sectors.

It is also a key marketing tool widely circulated nationally and 
internationally to existing and potential customers and all other 
interested parties.

PUBLICATION AVAILABILITY
Hard copies and compact disc versions of this report are  

free on request. If you wish to receive either version please  
call + 61 7 4781 1500.

Based on last year’s success, we have again produced  
compact disc versions of this report in an effort to further minimise 
production costs and tap into the benefits of such technology. 

An on-line version of the report is also available on our website  
www.townsville-port.com.au.

To be listed on our database and automatically receive future 
publications, please complete the appropriate section of the  
feedback form located at the back of this report.

 
 
YOUR COMMENTS ARE IMPORTANT TO US
Our 2003/2004 annual report received an Award of Excellence 

at the Institute of Internal Auditors Queensland Public Sector 
Annual Report Awards 2003.

We continually strive to achieve excellence in our reporting 
standards by ensuring our annual report is accurate, clear and  
professional.
Your comments and suggestions on the content and style of our 
report are important to us, so we can improve future reporting.  
These can be made using the feedback form at the back of this 
report.

OUR VISION:

To be recognised as a dynamic world-class port that is  

reliable, dependable and customer-focussed, serving as  

a catalyst for regional economic development.

OUR MISSION:

To manage and develop the Port of Townsville in a man-

ner that facilitates our existing customers to maximise their  

business opportunities and encourage new customers to 

utilise the Port whilst earning a commercial rate of return  

for our shareholders.

WE WILL ACHIEVE THIS MISSION BY:

■ Ensuring that our facilities and services are efficient,  
reliable and adequately meet the needs of existing and future  
customers.

■ Being committed to strategic planning and port promotion to 
attract trade and industry to Townsville.

■ Acting commercially and competitively to promote the  
economic outlook for the Port, shareholders and the region.

■ Vigilantly promoting safety in all operations, and providing our 
customers with a secure port to ensure the integrity of current 
and future operations and trade links.

■ Adhering to our corporate values in all our internal and  
external dealings and operations.

OUR CORPORATE VALUES:

Customers A commitment to serving our customers, present 
and future, by conducting all of our dealings  
honestly, professionally and courteously. 

Community Recognising the community as having an  
integral interest in the Port and our responsibility 
as a corporate citizen by increasing our  
responsiveness to community expectations. 

Our People Promoting motivation and enthusiasm through 
open and honest communication, recognition of 
employee contributions and performance, and 
creating opportunities for employees and their 
career development. 

Environment A responsible and proactive approach to environ-
mental protection by ensuring that sustainable 
environmental management is a core component 
of our operations and port development. 

Corporate 
Governance

Operating in a professional, ethical and fiscally 
responsible manner, minimising risk exposure and 
adhering to the principles of openness and  
transparency at all times. 
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